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 December 31, 2010  December 31, 2011  December 31, 2012  December 31, 2013

Sales 3.503 4.266 3.976 4.141   

Exports 844 1.100 1.144 983

EBITDA 245 326 277 341

Working Capital 875 1.003 1.110 1.091

CAPEX 166 296 352 304

Net Financial Debt 612 866 1.031 1.058

Total Assets 2.591 3.029 3.310 3.390

Financial Highlights

(USD million) 
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“I am proud to be the founder of 
Borusan Group, which is one of the 
most dynamic forces of Turkey’s 
economy and contributes in the 
prosperity of our nation.”

Asım Kocabıyık
Borusan Holding Founder 
and Honorary Chairman
1924-2012
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Chairman’s 
Message

The year 2013 was a critical one in which various new tendencies 
emerged in the global economy and, from the Turkish point of view, 
major social and political ruptures were experienced. As far as our 
Group is concerned, however, in moving another year closer to the 
70th anniversary of our founding, we continued as we always have 
to cruise along on our path of sustainable growth and development.

Without a doubt, the turning point in last year’s economic plot was 
the announcement of the first initiatives by the United States Central 
Bank, “the FED”, towards a change in policy in May. The FED’s an-
nouncement that it would temporarily suspend its policy of financial 
expansion through bond purchases caused developing countries to 
suddenly find themselves embroiled in a discussion concerning the 
mounting fragility of their economies. Previously, in the IMF World 
Economic Outlook Report, published in April of 2013, it had been 
predicted that the developing economies would spearhead an im-
provement in the global economy. However, by the second half of 
the year, these countries, Turkey being foremost among them, were 
forced to concentrate on new economic and monetary policies cor-
responding to their trade deficits. 

The global economy in 2013, taken as a whole, appears to have 
entered a growth trend reflecting the IMF estimates of 3.0% in 2013 
and 3.7% in 2014, especially in the light of the recovery indicators 
in the developed economies, principally in the United States. In this 
sense, it is possible to say that the worst of the global crises since 
2008-2009, especially in the developed economies, is now behind 
us. However, of course, the degree of this recovery varies from 
country to country.

First of all, among the developed nations, the United States of 
America is the country that has demonstrated the strongest and 
quickest recovery. 

Dear 
Shareholders,

A. AHMET KOCABIYIK

A. Ahmet Kocabıyık
Chairman of the Board

Borusan Holding
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The Turkish 
economy 
exceeded the IMF 
growth estimate 
for 2013 of 3.8% 
by achieving an 
overall growth rate 
of 4.0% last year. 

On the European Union front, a positive growth, no matter how 
small, can be perceived for the first time. However, it is commonly 
understood that this growth is still fragile and uneven. While the re-
gion of Western and Northern Europe, led by Germany, is showing 
strengthened growth indicators, certain countries remain mired in 
economic problems, namely Portugal, Ireland, Greece and Spain. 
Only time will tell whether the EU’s performance will prove to be 
as strong and sustainable as the economic recovery in the US. 
In Japan there have also been relatively positive developments. 
Nonetheless, despite the apparent positive short term results of 
the new economic policy, termed “Abenomics”, the medium to 
long term results of these policies, which are based on monetary 
expansion and a serious devaluation of the national currency, the 
Yen, remain uncertain. 

The situation among developing nations, including Turkey, is high-
ly ambivalent. Countries in deficit have experienced major market 
fluctuations. While currency exchange rates have risen, stock 
markets have fallen and interest rates have increased. However, 
the most important issue is that it is now evident that, according 
to even our most optimistic predictions for the coming period, the 
economies of developing nations, including those of China and 
India, are entering a period of slowed growth incomparison with 
that of the previous 10 years. 

The Turkish economy exceeded the IMF growth estimate for 2013 
of 3.8% by achieving an overall growth rate of 4.0% last year. 
Quarterly growth rates were 2.9% for the first three months of the 
year, 4.5% for the second quarter, and 4.3% and 4.4% in the final 
two quarters, respectively. 

Since Turkey’s 2012 growth rate was 2.1%, last year’s perfor-
mance was, in a sense, a good one. This showing placed Turkey, 
as was indicated in the Global Macro Outlook Report prepared by 
the international ratings agency Moody’s, among the world’s 20 
largest economies. Furthermore, the report listed Turkey as the 
country with the 5th highest growth rate. 

The increasingly positive perception, whether from inside or out-
side the country, of the path that the Turkish economy is pursuing 
was due to such developments as the payment of the final install-
ment of the country’s debt to the IMF in the first six months of the 
year and the good news on the economic front with the improved 
ratings from Moody’s and JCR, the international ratings agencies. 
In addition to this, also contributing to Turkey’s good reputation 
are the political initiatives contributing to the medium to long range 
social stability of the country, plus the creation of a strong sense of 
confidence in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S 
MESSAGE

This year we 
have carried out 
investments worth 
$304 million. 
A substantial 
part of this 
sum comprises 
investments in the 
energy industry 
made by Borusan 
Mannesmann in 
the United States, 
as well as Borusan 
EnBW Energy.

A. AHMET KOCABIYIK
In contrast to this, the Gezi Park events that erupted in June and 
which drew millions of people into the streets, along with the re-
sulting deaths that occurred, contributed to a dramatic question-
ing of the country’s political stability. In this context, the negative 
perception generated in the last six months both within the coun-
try, but especially overseas, played an intensifying role concerning 
the effects on the Turkish economy of the turbulence created by 
the FED’s change in policy. 

On the other hand, however, the government’s remaining faith-
ful to the principle of financial discipline and the Turkish Central 
Bank’s deficit controls and effective monetary policy aimed espe-
cially at controlling internal consumption and demand, managed 
to provide a correct and appropriate response, effectively limiting 
the impact of these unfavorable developments. Also contributing 
in a positive way to this was the growth in credit volume in the 
banking industry, along with macro-level precautions taken by the 
government.

How was the Borusan Group able to accomplish its 
performance in 2013 against the backdrop of the 
pluses and minuses of the international and domestic 
economies? 

I would like to emphasize five important points concerning our 
Group. First of all, there is the subject of profitable growth, which 
is given major emphasis by our Group. The year 2013 was one 
of profitable growth in which Borusan achieved the targets it set 
for itself. Our total turnover was $4.1 billion. With the acquisition 
of the Balnak Logistics company, our total number of employees 
rose to 7,000 persons. Despite the fact that we are involved on a 
large scale in heavy industry, last year the percentage of female 
employees working for our Group rose to 16%. This matter, re-
garding increasing the employment of women in our country, is 
one to which we give special importance. 

The second important point relates to our Group’s vision for devel-
opment. Since its founding, the Borusan Group has established 
a number of partnerships with global leaders in their respective 
industries, in line with our goal of becoming a global player. Thus, 
we have grown by closely following emerging opportunities in 
both domestic and international markets. 

The turnover from overseas sales currently stands at approxi-
mately 25% of our overall revenue. I can say with confidence that, 
from 2014 onwards, we are going to increase this percentage to 
even higher levels. Borusan is a group that has grown and flour-
ished in our native soil, but it is now time to expand our horizons 
and embrace the world. 

The third significant point con-
cerns our unshakeable belief 
in innovative products and 
services in the 21st century. An 
indispensible part of being a 
global player, and creating and 
preserving a sustainable com-
petitive advantage, is to main-
tain focus on high value-added 
and innovative products and 
services. 

In 2013, we commenced work 
on the development of over 60 
new products and services, as 
well as business models, with 
over 100 of our employees. 
One of the projects we carried 
out in this area is a fully sep-
arate company set up under 
the aegis of Borusan Logis-
tics, namely ETA (Elektronik 
Taşımacılık Ağı Taşımacılık ve 
Tic. A.Ş.), which holds the 
distinction of being Turkey’s 
first and only electronic trans-
portation network. In the first 
year of its establishment, ETA 
today offers transportation for 
over 2,000 SME members and 
4,000 truck operator members. 

Our investments are the fourth 
major matter I consider impor-
tant. This year we have carried 
out investments worth $304 
million. A substantial part of this 
sum comprises investments in 
the energy industry made by 
Borusan Mannesmann in the 
United States, as well as Boru-
san EnBW Energy. 

From the perspective of the 
Turkish steel industry, with an 
unprecedented strategic in-
vestment of $150 million in the 
United States, we will effective-
ly be moving into production 
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& Kocabıyık. At the same time, Borusan Contemporary continues 
to promote contemporary art with specially commissioned mas-
terpieces from world-celebrated artists and nearly 800 artworks 
housed in the Contemporary Art Collection belonging to Borusan 
Holding. More than ever in 2013, we saw once again just how 
important it is to invest in culture and the arts for the development 
of art appreciation in our country through the impressive year-long 
exhibition by Rafael Lozano-Hemmer, entitled Vicious Circular 
Breathing. 

Turkey entered the year 2014 in a state overly characterized by 
compounded political insecurities fed by increasing social polari-
zation. Following the local elections in March, which took place in 
an atmosphere of highly elevated tensions, Turkey now finds itself 
facing the first ever presidential elections to be decided by pop-
ular vote, scheduled for August. As for external affairs, while the 
government is encountering an alarming erosion of its reputation 
in the eyes of the foreign media and Syria is undergoing a bloody 
civil war right next door, developments in Ukraine have added yet 
another political crisis of international dimensions. 

It is painfully obvious that all these somewhat unfavorable con-
ditions will have an effect on the performance of the Turkish 
economy in 2014 and likewise, whether directly or indirectly, upon 
our Group in the coming year. Despite this, we are of the opinion 
that in line with the government’s Mid-Term Program covering 
the 2014-2016 period, and in connection with the recovery in the 
global economy, and especially with an upturn in the countries of 
the EU, which are Turkey’s principle export market, the Turkish 
economy will manage to achieve its 3% growth target without 
difficulty. 

We as the Borusan Group have set ourselves the goal for 2014, 
in which we celebrate the 70th anniversary of our founding, of 
making new investment forays into the domestic business areas 
in which we are engaged in, while on the other hand, undertaking 
strong, new ventures in the foreign marketplaces to create more 
value to our stakeholders.

With best regards,

A. Ahmet Kocabıyık
Chairman of the Board
Borusan Holding

by July of 2014. Located on a parcel of land measuring approxi-
mately 500 hectares in the State of Texas, our facility will provide 
employment for 250 people once it reaches full capacity. Further-
more, it will allow for the production of high endurance, thick-bore 
pipes that are compatible with the latest, most advanced probe 
technology used in the USA in the increasing production of shale 
gas of recent years. 

Concerning the area of energy, with a total investment of $3.5 
billion by 2020, we are planning to increase by almost twenty fold 
the installed power of Borusan EnBW Energy, a joint venture be-
tween Borusan and Germany’s third largest energy company. The 
current installed power of Borusan EnBW Energy is 110 MW. By 
the end of 2014, we also plan to begin operations at the Balabanlı 
Wind Power Plant, whose construction began in September of 
2013. Subsequently, the next plant to become operational will be 
the Izmir Kemalpaşa Fuat Wind Power Plant Project, with a ca-
pacity of 30 MW. Plans are already in place for other plants to be 
set up, with an installed power capacity of 50 MW each, in Çanak-
kale, Bursa and Mersin. Furthermore, in 2014, we will commence 
work on the 138 MW Saroz project, which is planned to be one of 
Turkey’s largest wind power facilities. 

The fifth major point, one that I personally give special importance 
to, and which is covered in greater detail in the section of this 
Annual Report concerning our social responsibility initiatives, is 
the matter of how to better incorporate the labor and creative 
energy of our country’s women into our world of work. In 2013, in 
cooperation with the Ministry of Family and Social Policies and the 
Ministry of Science, Industry and Technology, we started a Project 
aimed to help women previously unable to enter the workforce 
due to a lack of childcare opportunities. In that venture, entitled 
“My Mom’s Job Is My Future”, we are building childcare facilities, 
named “Borusan Joy Factories” in 10 organized industrial zones 
in 10 provinces throughout Turkey, providing care and pre-school 
education for children aged 0-6 years. We will be opening the first 
Borusan Joy Factory in May of 2014 in Adıyaman. 

We are also continuing at full speed with our investments in the 
field of culture and the arts. This year, the Borusan Istanbul Phil-
harmonic Orchestra (BİFO), while celebrating its 15th anniversary, 
is accompanying some of the most famous names in the World 
of classical music, starting with one of the greatest living tenors, 
Roberto Alagna, and the world-renowned violin virtuoso Christian 
Tetzlaff. Borusan Culture and Arts is nourishing the lifeblood of art 
in our country with, in addition to BİFO, the Borusan Quartet and 
the Borusan Music House. Added to this is our internet radio sta-
tion, Borusan Classic, which continues to accumulate accolades 
in its first year, as well as our seasoned artbook publisher, Ertuğ 
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Borusan Holding 
Board of Directors

A. AHMET KOCABIYIK,
Chairman
BÜLENT DEMİRCİOĞLU,
Vice Chairman
AGAH UĞUR,
Executive Board Member and 
Group CEO
ZEYNEP HAMEDİ,
Member
NÜKHET ÖZMEN,
Member
FRANCIS PAUL MER,
Member
STEFANO PROVERBIO,
Member

A. AHMET KOCABIYIK, 
Chairman of the Holding 
Board. Retired from 
Holding Exe. Committee 
as of Sept 2013
BÜLENT DEMİRCİOĞLU,  
Vice Chairman of the 
Holding Board. Retired 
from Holding Exe. 
Committee as of 
Sept 2013
AGAH UĞUR,
Group CEO
MEHMET BETİL,
Member

Executive Committee
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Borusan 2013 
Review of Operations

2013 was a year there was 
full of surprises, time sped up 
and uncertainties increased all 
around the world. The most im-
portant development impacting 
the markets in 2013 was the 
announcement of the United 
States Federal Reserve System, 
the US Central Bank known 
simply as the FED, at its May 
meeting, that it would be reduc-
ing bonds purchasing in stages. 
Subsequent to this announce-
ment, capital flight commenced 
from the economies of develop-
ing countries, and the quest for 
a new balance began around 
the globe as well. As the devel-
oped economies began to rally 
in 2013, developing countries 
attempted to adapt to more 
stringent financial conditions 
and to the slowdown in growth. 
As a result, the global growth 
rate was confined to 3%.

2013 was also a difficult year 
for Turkey, from both an eco-
nomic  and soc io-po l i t i ca l 
perspective. Unti l mid-May, 
under the influence of positive 

Dear Valued 
Investors, 
Shareholders 
and 
Employees,

economic developments and 
the fact that Turkey’s positive 
credit rating had been upgraded 
to investment grade, there was 
a positive atmosphere in the 
market and our sectors. Dur-
ing this time, investor interest 
in Turkey was high. After May, 
however, the FED’s announce-
ment coincided with social and 
political events, resulting in a 
negative impact on financial 
markets and real economy. De-
spite this, the Turkish economy 
still managed to complete the 
year with a growth rate of 4% 
over that of the global economy.
Despite all these uncertain-
ties and surprises, our Group 
achieved a consolidated income 
of US$ 4.1 billion with a growth 
of 4.2% in 2013 in parallel to our 
business plans. The profitability 
of the most of our Group com-
panies realized in line with their 
budget plans; hence, Borusan 
Group had a profitable growth 
in 2013.

We increased the operational 
profit by 23% up to US$ 341 

million, and generated 24% of 
our consolidated income from 
exports upon our strategy of 
“becoming a powerful regional 
player”. 

Despite the challenging condi-
tions in both our domestic and 
export markets, our gross profit 
margin and EBITDA margin rose 
to 12% and 8.2% respectively 
by maintaining our focus on 
profitability. 

AGAH UĞUR
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Having processed 2.5 million 
tons of steel in 2013, our steel 
companies were able to main-
tain their leading position in the 
market, in spite of the corre-
sponding increase in capacity 
and competition in the sector 
during the same period. Our 
steel pipe and flat steel compa-
nies constitute 43% of Group’s 
consolidated income with total 
sales revenue of $1.8 billion. 
Furthermore, Group’s opera-
tional profits increased by 29% 
compared to 2012 figures and 
an EBITDA of $154 million was 
generated. 

The most developed company 
in the Turkish steel pipe industry, 
Borusan Mannesmann, has 
been strengthening its leader-
ship position in the domestic 
market in recent years with 
the help of investments the 
company realized. In addition 
to this, since 2013, it has been 
rapidly advancing along the path 
of becoming a global player by 
beginning sales of drilling pipes 

used for the extraction of petro-
leum and natural gas through 
i ts US subsidiary, Borusan 
Mannesmann Pipe US, Inc.. 
Having sold a total of 583 thou-
sand tons of first quality pipe 
in 2013, Borusan Mannes-
mann Boru generated an export 
volume of 311 thousand tons 
and export sales revenues 
constituted 55% of total revenue 
of  the company,  US$ 600 
million. Despite 
the competition  
due to capacity 
increases in the 
domestic market 
and  dec rease 
in steel  pr ices 
c o m p a r e d 
t o  2 0 1 2 ,  t h e 
c o m p a n y 
achieved a gross profit margin at 
a level of 11%, and an EBITDA of 
US$ 61 million with an increase 
of 25% over 2012 numbers. 
Furthermore, the BMB-Noksel 
Çelik Boru–Erciyas Çelik Boru 
consortium, in which we play 
a major  ro le,  successfu l ly 

2012 2013

Consolidated Net Sales Consolidated EBITDA
US$ Millions US$ Millions

completed its preliminary qualifying evaluation for the purchase of 
the steel pipeline pipes to be used in the massive Trans-Anatolian 
gas pipeline (TANAP) project. 

The largest company in our Group in terms of sales revenues, 
Borçelik increased its sales by 3% and broke its record in total sales 
volume, as well as domestic sales volume, reflecting a total amount 
of 1.2 million tons despite heavy competition in the flat steel market, 
a weakening demand globally, particularly from Europe and the Far 
East, and falling steel prices. In raising its 2013 sales by 38% over 
those of the previous year, Borçelik increased its EBITDA to US$ 87 
million. Moreover, the Company also preserved its market leader-

ship in galvanized steel market in 2013.

Another Borusan Group company operating in the flat steel industry, 
Kerim Çelik, focused on profitability in 2013 rather than volume 
growth due to a challenging competitive environment, and retained 
its customer penetration rate in key industries. The Adana Branch, 
which located in the center of attraction in the flat steel industry, 
went into fully operation in 2012, and doubled its sales in 2013 by 

2012 2013

4,1413,976 277

341

The largest company in our Group in terms of 
sales revenues, Borçelik increased its sales by 
3% and  broke its record in total sales volume, 
as well as domestic sales volume, reflecting a 
total amount of 1.2 million tons
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leveraging its advantage of the proximity to customers. Despite a 
total decrease in sales volume of 11%, Kerim Çelik maintained its 
2012 EBITDA level at US$ 6 million. 

Our distr ibut ion companies 
competently sustained their 
growth trend they had in previous 
years and succeeded in raising 
their sales revenues by 15% in 
2013. Distribution of luxury auto-
mobile and construction equip-
ments, along with our power 
systems distribution, comprised 
45% of Group’s consolidated sales revenue with an increasing 
operational profitability by 9% and that yields an EBITDA of US$ 
165 million.

Borusan Otomotiv, the Turkish distributor for the BMW, Land 
Rover and MINI brands, reached a record volume in 2013 with a 
total of 23,585 retail automobile sales. Raising its customer satis-
faction level to 94% with its quick and innovative solutions, Borusan 
Otomotiv retained its market leader position for luxury cars in 2013. 
Thanks to its high sales volume, the turnover of the Automotive 
Group approached to US$ 1 billion with an EBITDA of US$ 78 
million.

With a higher strategic focus to manage rental operations for the 
BMW, MINI and Land Rover brands, represented in Turkey by 
Borusan Otomotiv, Borusan Otomotiv Premium Kiralama started 
its operations in October of 2012. Operating in order to meet 
customers’ needs for renting a car of a car fleet for periods ranging 
from 12 to 48 months, Borusan Otomotiv Premium Kiralama grew 
its fleet to 1,971 vehicles by the end of 2013. Thus, in comparison 
with the 2012 year end results, the size of the fleet had increased 

by 21% and achieved a turnover 
of US$ 46 million.
At the end of 2013, the construc-
tion equipment market in Turkey 

had grown by 6% compared to 
2012, and reached up to 11,441 
machines. Borusan Makina ve 
Güç Sistemleri maintained its 
leadership position in terms 
of sales revenue in the Turkish 
market with a sales volume of 
1,521 new machines. Likewise, 
Borusan Makina kept its lead-
ership position in 2013 among 
western-sourced construc-
tion equipment companies in 
Kazakhstan, increasing its turn-
over by 5% and exceeding 
US$ 270 million. Borusan Güç 
Sistemleri also maintained its 
leadership position and achieved 
high sales revenues and profit in 
all countries the company is 
operating with turnkey solutions. 
Having increased its consoli-

Our distribution companies 
competently continued the growth 
trend they had in previous years 
and succeeded in raising their sales 
revenues by 15% in 2013.
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dated profitability by 6% in 2013, Borusan Makina ve Güç Sistem-
leri raised its EBITDA up to US$87 million. Furthermore, we added 
Bucyrus branded equipments to our portfolio, which is a subsidiary 
of Caterpillar, Inc. and a major brand utilized in the mining industry. 
Our goal is to combine our years of know-how and experience as 
being market leader in Kazakh mining industry with our new prod-
ucts in order to secure an increased penetration in Turkish, Azeri 
and Georgian markets.

Borusan Lojistik became the Turkey’s leading logistics company 
with the acquisition of Balnak Lojistik, one of the pioneer compa-
nies in the Turkish logistics industry, in December, 2012. Thanks 
to this inorganic investment, Borusan Lojistik achieved net sales 
returns of US$ 551 million with a growth of 56%. The company 
have broadened its international transportation network with its 
high service capacity, especially in Europe, and completed the 
third phase of port expansion investment which began in 2012 at 
the Gemlik port. With the investment, the port reached a handling 
capacity of 400,000 TEU containers aiming to meet the demand of 
the Southern Marmara region in 2013. Beyond this, the Company 
also added cold chain logistics and partial services to its service 
portfolio in Turkey. Borusan Lojistik generated an EBITDA of 
US$ 38 million in 2013. 

Manheim Türkiye, the first  “multi-brand used automobile plat-
form” in Turkey and the partner of Manheim (USA), the world-leader 
in the area of auctions,  brokered the sale of 15,360 vehicles at 
auctions and had at 2,756 member dealers. Manheim Türkiye had 
put into operation three new online sales systems in 2012, which 
had an average weekly joining rate of 1,200 members in 2013, 
namely Simulcast, CyberStock and CyberAuction.  It also initiated 
the Mobile Auction application, enabling the holding of auctions 
and on-site sales in regions where the Company has no physical 
presence. Last year, the Company increased its total number of 

BORUSAN 2013
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Borusan 
Lojistik became 
the Turkey’s 
leading logistics 
company with 
the acquisition 
of Balnak 
Lojistik, one 
of the pioneer 
companies 
in the Turkish 
logistics industry, 
in December, 
2012.

Consolidated Working Capital and Net Financial Debt

US$ Millions2012 US$ Millions2013

1,110
1,031

1,091 1,058

Working 
Capital

NFD Working 
Capital

NFD
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2013 was also a successful year for Borusan 
Group in terms of balance sheet management. 
Despite our growing business volume, we 
enhanced our working capital level by improving 
our policies on managing stock and receivables.

customers by 11% and sales 
volume by 45%, and generated 
an EBITDA of US$ 2.3 million.

In 2013, Supsan, our valve 
supplier to the leading auto-
mobile brands, sold 5.3 million 
valves, of which 2.9 mill ion 
were exported. Supsan’s turn-
over was US$ 20 million while 
its EBITDA was US$ 1.2 million 
in the last year. In addition to 
valves, sales of other products 
resulted in a revenue of US$ 3 

mill ion. Thus, 
t he  tu r nove r 
from non-valve 
p r o d u c t s , 
which had been 
s t r a t eg i ca l l y 
posit ioned in 
2009, reached 
15% of the total 
e a r n i n g s .  I n 
2013, Supsan 

once again proved its compet-
itive strength by performing 
high in the audits of BMW and 
Mercedes.

Borusan EnBW Energy, which 
Borusan Group entered into the 
sector in 2007, have invested 
US$ 460 million, currently has 
110 MW installed capacity, 
accelerated its investments of 
portfolio projects in 2013. In 
this regard, the construction 
works on the Balabanlı Wind 
Power Plant (Tekirdağ, 50 MW), 

of which investment decision 
had taken in 2012 and ground-
breaking ceremony was taken 
place in September 2013, was 
hastened. In addition to this, 
investment decision for a 207 
MW of Wind Power Plant was 
made. Being a total capacity 
of 207 MW, this will be one of 
Europe’s largest energy invest-
ments. This step that Borusan 
has taken is simultaneously 
a sign of our permanent and 
powerful presence in the energy 
industry, as well as an important 
and meaningful example of our 
philosophy of always priori-
tizing our responsibility towards 
our country. We intend to carry 
out our energy investments 
focusing on renewable energy 
in order to reach a portfolio of 
2,000 MW in 2020. 

2013 was also a successful year 
for Borusan Group in terms of 
balance sheet management. 
Despite our growing busi-
ness volume, we enhanced 
our working capital level by 
improv ing our  po l ic ies  on 
managing stock and receiv-
ables. We continued to invest at 
full speed throughout 2013 and 
realized a total investment of US$ 
304 million in order to both enter 
new marketsand to enhance our 
competitive strength in existing 
markets. In spite of our high 
capital expenditures, with the 

BORUSAN 2013
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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help of the improved working 
capital management our net 
financial debt realized parallel to 
its 2012 levels. 

In 2013, we continued 
to take major strategic 
actions to build our future. 

We decided to manage our new 
product, service and business 
model development activities in 
a more focused manner, which 
we originally determined as a 
strategic initiative in 2011 and 
internalized over the past three 
years. Under this framework, 
New Product Development and 
Innovation units in all Group 
companies were established, 
and subsequently appointed 
26 full-time employees respon-
sible for carrying out over 100 
projects. By means of this struc-
ture, we are able to system-
atically gather ideas for new 
products, services and business 
models and develop, shape and 
test them. Borusan reviewed 
its customer value propositions 
with a need-based customer 
segmentation approach. We 
also took important steps in 
raising awareness within the 
Group of subjects such as 
patents, techno parks, venture 
capital and state support, as 
well as collaboration with univer-
sities. 

In 2014, our Group will cele-
brate the 70th anniversary of 
its founding. At this significant 
juncture in our existence we will 
manage our current enterprises 
in the most focused and sensi-
tive manner while defining new 
five-year strategic plan from the 
perspective of how best to take 
our Group into the future. On 
our strategic road map, we will 
determine how we can “become 
a leader and powerful regional 
player in the markets where we 
are involved” by carrying out 
strategically-determined organic 
and inorganic investments, as 
well as by developing new prod-
ucts, services and business 
models. We will achieve all of this 
by reenergizing approach and 
understanding of entrepreneur-
ship pioneered by our founder, 
Asım Kocabıyık, when he estab-
lished Borusan Group 70 years 
ago.

We believe that the year 2014, 
our 70th anniversary, will be a 
period of successes in which 
we will sustain important stra-
tegic investments and move to 
our goal of profitable growth, 
despite the challenges in busi-
ness environment. 

Agah Uğur
Group CEO
Borusan Holding

I  would l ike to extend my 
sincerest thanks to al l  our 
shareholders, customers, busi-
ness partners and employees 
for their support and trust in 
Borusan Group. We will con-
tinue to create value for our 
stakeholders and, of course, 
for our country.
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THE RAISON D’ÊTRE OF BORUSAN HOLDING IS 
TO RAISE THE VALUE OF SHAREHOLDER ASSETS 
WHILE PRESERVING ITS CORPORATE REPUTATION. 

THE ROLE OF 
BORUSAN HOLDING

RESTRUCTURING OF THE BORUSAN GROUP 
CORPORATE CENTER

In 2013, starting with changes in the corporate environment, 
Borusan Holding has undergone an organizational transformation 
that enables development in response to the growth of the Borusan 
Group, as well as to the effects of globalization and competition. 
The “Corporate Center”, composed of corporate functions which 
constitute the common denominator for the Group companies, has 
been restructured with a view to future developments and needs. 

In this regard, it was found more appropriate to manage the func-
tions of the center under two separate structures, known as “Boru-
san Holding” and “Borusan Danışmanlık ve Ortak Hizmetler” (Boru-
san Consulting and Shared Services Center ) 

Along with these central structures, it was decided to combine all 
the educational, cultural and artistic activities of the Borusan 

Kocabıyık Foundation, as well as 
the important social responsibil-
ity activities of both the Founda-
tion and the Group as a whole, 
into a single, holistic structure, 
which will be managed on a 
more efficient and disciplined 
basis. 

Borusan Holding 

The raison d’être of Borusan 
Holding is to raise the value of 
shareholder portfolio while pre-
serving its distinguished corpo-
rate reputation.  

Borusan Holding is defined as a 

BARIŞ KÖKOĞLU,
Borusan Holding, CFO
LALE ERGİN ARAT,
Borusan Holding, Strategy, 
Business Development, 
Innovation Director
SEMRA AKMAN,
Borusan Holding, Human 
Resources Director
CANAN ERCAN ÇELİK,
Borusan Danışmanlık ve Ortak 
Hizmetler, Chairman
ALİ FUAT ÇÖTELİOĞLU,
Borusan Danışmanlık ve Ortak 
Hizmetler, CIO
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lean, focused structure whose 
purpose is to provide the Group 
its direction values and priorities. 
Furthermore, it also provides 
know-how to the enterprises 
in our portfolio in depth, sets 
clear and demanding goals, and 
concentrates on key issues as 
portfolio management, strate-
gic planning, business develop-
ment, human resources, finance 
innovation and brand 
management.

Within this framework, Borusan 
Holding: 

• Takes on a vanguard role in 

terms of strategic leadership and 
control, and manages relations 
with partners and other social 
stakeholders. Also ensures the 
efficient use of Group resources, 
enhances the corporate culture 
and identity and establishes ef-
fective communication channels. 
• Aims to harmonize its role as 
investor with its roles of parental 
assistance and support within a 
balanced structure.
• Manages portfolio risk in an 
effective manner through regu-
lar monitoring and risk diversifi-
cation activities. Upon entering 
new enterprises, Borusan Hold-
ing aims to take note of these 

risks in order to create a balanced portfolio. When 
making investment decisions, Holding ensures the 
optimal allocation of the Group’s financial resources 
and, while executing investment decisions monitors 
the effectiveness of investment management disci-
pline.
• Supports the Group companies in attaining their 
strategic goals, and constantly monitors and analyz-
es the performance of the portfolio.
• In addition, Borusan Holding draws up the road-
map for the whole Group for the transformation of its 
corporate culture and organizational environment in-
to one in which “innovation” has become an integral 
component under every circumstances. In order to 
ensure, the Holding functions emphasis the spread 
and the internalization of this manner to the business 
culture.
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THE ROLE OF 
BORUSAN HOLDING

Borusan Danışmanlık ve 
Ortak Hizmetler:

All of the other integral functions 
of the Corporate Center have 
been gathered under the aegis 
of Borusan Danışmanlık ve Ortak 
Hizmetler, which has been posi-
tioned to create synergy 

throughout the Group and man-
age common shared servic-
es processes with leaner and 
efficient structures. Borusan 
Danışmanlık ve Ortak Hizmetler 
has been established as an entity 
that operates in the areas where 
there are significant economies 
of scale advantage, 
Group strength, synergy and 
economic benefit are obtained.  

Furthermore, it also performs 
corporate functions and provides 
services in the fields of expertise 
areas where it has been deter-
mined  that the Group compa-
nies do not have the substance 
to create their own expertise in 
terms of practicality and eco-
nomic efficiency with respect to 
the solid business need basis, 
separate structures are neither 
economical nor practical, nor 
necessary, while in-depth exper-
tise is required. 

Within this framework, Borusan 
Danışmanlık ve Ortak Hizmetler:

• Provides the necessary exper-
tise of supporting the business 
outcomes of the Group and 
manages relevant processes at 
optimum cost and maximum ef-
ficiency with regard to essential 
functions such as Central Pur-
chasing, Corporate Risk Man-
agement, Law, the Corporate 
Secreteria and Communications. 
• Manages the Group’s principal 
initiatives such as sustainability 
and Lean 6 Sigma 
• Monitors and controls Group’s 
social responsibility projects, 
while providing financial and ad-
ministrative support to the Hold-
ing and its subsidiaries.
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BORUSAN CONTRIBUTES TO TURKEY’S OVERALL DEVELOPMENT 
IN AREAS SUCH AS EDUCATION, CULTURE AND THE ARTS, AND 
THE EMPOWERMENT OF WOMEN THROUGH THE PROJECTS IT 
UNDERTAKES AND SUPPORTS IN LINE WITH ITS CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES.

BORUSAN KOCABIYIK FOUNDATION
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EDUCATION
Borusan continued its social responsibility projects in the  
field of education in 2013. As it has done in previous years, 

the Foundation provided for the needs 
of the Borusan Asım Kocabıyık Technical 
and Industrial Vocational High School 
in Beylikdüzü, Istanbul and the Borusan 
Automotive Zehra Nurhan Kocabıyık Primary 
School in Avcılar, also a district of Istanbul. 
Both were built by BKV and donated to the 
Ministry of National Education in 1998, as the 
Foundation simultaneously supported other 
schools. In 2013, the Foundation provided 
educational scholarships to158 students on 
the domestic front, plus another eight overseas 
scholarships to students wishing to study 
for a Masters’ degree in the field of music. 

Under its mentoring program, support was also provided for 45 
scholarship recipients. The Foundation continued in its support 
of the “Baba Beni Okula Gönder” (Daddy, Send Me to School) 
campaign and provided funding of scholarships for 100 girls. 
Also, the Foundation maintained its commitment to helping fund 
important resources for the cause of education.

 

Borusan contributes to Turkey’s 
overall development in areas 
such as education, culture and 
the arts, and the empowerment 
of women through the projects 
it undertakes and supports in 
line with its corporate social 
responsibilities. The Group’s 
above-mentioned activit ies 
are all structured under the 
Borusan Kocabıyık Foundation 
(BKV). Believing that the private 
sector must also be a solutions 
partner in the task of social 
development, BKV allocated 
funds worth $ 16 million to its 
activities in 2013. Taking its cue 
from the words of our founder 
and Honorary President, the 
late Asım Kocabıyık, “I owe a 
debt of gratitude to this country 
and I have been trying all my 
life to repay it.” BKV carries out 
its all work in accordance with 
this conviction. Since 1992, the 
Foundation has been investing 
in the field of education and im-
plementing value-adding social 
projects in order to overcome 
the country’s lack of qualified 
labor. 

 

BORUSAN 
KOCABIYIK FOUNDATION

Taking its cue from the words 
of our founder and Honorary 
President, the late Asım 
Kocabıyık, “I owe a debt of 
gratitude to this country and I 
have been trying all my life to 
repay it.”
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BORUSAN 
KOCABIYIK FOUNDATION

In the area of music, Borusan 
Culture and Arts is responsible 
for the Borusan Istanbul 
Philharmonic Orchestra (BIPO), 
the Borusan Quartet, the 
Borusan Virtuosi, the Borusan 
Childrens’ Choir, the Borusan 
Müzik Evi (Borusan Music 
House), and supporting the 
internet-broadcast classical 
music radio station, Borusan 
Klasik (Borusan Classic) 
provided by Karnaval.com. 
Borusan Culture and Arts also 
represents Turkey as a member 
of the International Society 
for Contemporary Music 
(ISCM) and the European 
Music Council (EMC). After 
performing 19 concerts during 
the 2012–2013 season, 
attended by a total audience 
of nearly 30 thousand, the 
Borusan Istanbul Philharmonic 
Orchestra has prepared an 
exciting program for the 
2013–2014 season, which 
marked its 15th anniversary. In 
addition to world class soloists, 
the program featured the BIPO 
& Beethoven Festival and a 
series of concerts focused on 
Beethoven’s complete piano 
sonatas to be performed 
by Rudolf Buchbinder. This 
sevenday concert series was 
the first time all of Beethoven’s 
piano sonatas had been played 
by the same pianist. BIPO 
opened its 2013–2014 season 
with the worldrenowned piano 
duo Güher and Süher Pekinel, 
an inspiration to all young 
musicians with their depth of 
musical accomplishment and 
perfection. 

The Borusan Quartet had a 
very successful season full of 
musical collaborations with 
Fazıl Say and Ferhan & Ferzan 
Önder, plus concerts at the 
Süreyya Opera in the 2012–
2013 season. Last May, much 
to the delight of classical music 
lovers, the Quartet released 
its first CD titled Erkin, Aykal, 
Saygun. For its 2013–2014 
season, Turkey’s finest string 
quartet played Beethoven’s 
string quartet pieces. 

Borusan Music House as a 
popular venue for presenting 
classical music, world music, 
jazz, new music and dance 
along with contemporary art 
exhibitions since its opening in 
2010, continued to host unique 
and attractive projects in the 
2013–2014 season which 
contributed to the musical life 
of Istanbul. 

Turkey’s first classical radio 
station to boradcast over the 
Internet, Borusan Classic, 
began its life in broadcasting 
on January 17, 2013. Rapidly 
acquiring new listeners with 
increasingly longer listening 
periods since going on-air, 
Borusan Classic’s current 
program for the new season 
features the participation 
of guests such as Hakan 
Çelik, Tuna Kiremitçi, Şirin 
Pancaroğlu, Kâmran İnce and 
Kamuran Solmaz, along with 
musician interviews. 

BORUSAN CULTURE AND ARTS
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Ertuğ & Kocabıyık 
Publications

One of the leading names 
in the international art book 
publishing industry, Ertuğ 
& Kocabıyık Publications, 
continues to introduce the 
cultural and artistic heritage 
of Turkey and Europe to the 
whole world via its exquisite 
tomes. In the last days of 
2013, Ertuğ & Kocabıyık 
published its new book 
Sagalassos: City of Water. 
The book, consisting of 99 
full-color prints and various 
drawings, contains the plans of 
the ancient city of Sagalassos, 
located at an elevation of 
2,045 meters in the foothills 
of Mt. Ağlasun, approximately 
150 km north of Antalya. 
Sagalassos: City of Water 
features the photographs of 
the architect/photographer 
Ahmet Ertuğ and text by 
archaeologist Marc Waelkens 
and presents the reader with 
208 pages of rich content and 
flawless visuals. 

BORUSAN 
KOCABIYIK FOUNDATION

On its 100th birthday, the 
Yusuf Ziya Paşa Mansion 
(also known as Perili Köşk, 
the “Haunted Mansion”) in 
Rumelihisarı, which serves as 
the headquarters of Borusan 
Holding, was transformed into 
an exhibition center for the 
collection of contemporary art 
under the name of “Borusan 
Contemporary”. Utilized during 
the week as the main office for 
Borusan Holding, on weekends 
Perili Köşk becomes the venue 
where art lovers come to enjoy 
Borusan Contemporary’s 
innovative exhibitions, each 
of which is more striking than 
the previous one. The Borusan 
Contemporary 2013 program 
continued to present selections 
from its collection alongside 
exhibitions with different media 
and conceptual content much 
to the delight of art aficionados. 
From February 2 to April 14 
2013, Borusan Contemporary 
hosted the Anima exhibition 
featuring the work of the 
extraordinary Korean artist 
Choe U-Ram, famed for giving 
life to metal in his unusual 
art pieces. Between April 
27 and September 1, 2013, 

BORUSAN 
CONTEMPORARY

Borusan Contemporary held 
the Datascape exhibition, 
curated by Benjamin Weil. The 
Segment #3 exhibition, which 
opened in November of 2012 
and introduced art lovers to 
almost 100 works by over 
40 artists in the collection, 
attracted such intensive 
interest from aficionados that 
its run was extended until 
September 1, 2013. Borusan 
Contemporary greeted the 
13th Istanbul Biennale, which 
opened on September 14, 
2013, with two different 
exhibitions. Rafael Lozano-
Hemmer’s Vicious Circular 
Breathing and the Segment 
#4 selection from the Borusan 
Collection of Contemporary 
Art were exhibited at Perili 
Köşk for the enjoyment of 
art lovers. The Segment 
#4 exhibition consisted of 
important selected works from 
the broad collection of Borusan 
Contemporary, featured pieces 
by artists such as Ali Ömer 
Kazma, Erwin Redl and Chen 
Jiagang. The workshops 
organized in conjunction with 
the exhibitions at Borusan 
Contemporary also continued 
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Borusan’s 70th Year 
Enlightened by the Light 
of Art

As one of the biggest 
supporters of Culture and 
the Arts in Turkey, Borusan 
inaugurated a video 
exhibition in honor of its 70th 
anniversary, which began 
towards the end of 2013. 
This exceptional exposition 
is projected onto the external 
façade of its headquarters 
at Perili Köşk, located in 
Istanbul’s Rumelihisarı 
district. The video and light 
show, created by French 
contemporary artist Thierry 
Dreyfus to celebrate Borusan’s 
70th year of existence, is 
entitled Our Dreams Remain 
Our Dreams. As a part of 
the Group’s 70th anniversary 
festivities, this work, which 
is included in the Collection, 
has transformed the external 
façade of Perili Köşk into an 
enchanting video and 
light show.

WOMEN’S EMPOWERMENT 

My Mom’s Job is My Future 

Borusan believes that the rapid growth of the industrial sector 
has played a major role in Turkey attaining a more powerful 
structure. One of the critical issues in industrial development is 
the low rate of female employment. In 2013, with the conviction 
that women should participate more in the industrial sector, 
Borusan initiated the project “My Mom’s Job is My Future” 
(“Annemin İşi Benim Geleceğim”). The aim of the “My Mom’s Job 
is My Future” project, launched in partnership with the Ministry 
of Family and Social Policies, as well as the Ministry of Science, 
Industry and Technology, is to provide support for women’s 
participation in the workforce by focusing on childcare, one 
of the greatest barriers to female employment. In this project, 
childcare facilities for children aged between 0-6, going under 
the name “Borusan Joy Factory” (Borusan Neşe Fabrikası”), are 
being constructed in 10 organized industrial zones in 10 cities. 
The first four Borusan Joy Factories, located in the Adıyaman, 
Afyonkarahisar, Malatya and Şanlıurfa Organized Industrial 
Zones, have been started, each with a 75-child capacity. With 
the support provided to women through the “My Mom’s Job Is 
My Future” project, female employment will increase even more, 
especially in the Anatolian business environment. While women 
will be able to work with their hearts at ease, their children 
will be well cared for in a joyous, safe and healthy educational 
environment in the Borusan Joy Factories. At the inception of the 
project in 2013, Borusan organized an architectural competition 
across Turkey for the design of the Borusan Joy Factories. 
Following the selection of the architectural project, work started 
on laying the foundations of the child care facilities in Adıyaman 
and Afyonkarahisar, while the actual construction commenced in 
2013.
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BORUSAN 
KOCABIYIK FOUNDATION

THE EPHESUS 
FOUNDATION

In 2010, under the leadership 
of Borusan Holding, the 
Ephesus Foundation was 
founded with the vision 
of contributing to the 
development and international 
profile of the ancient city of 
Ephesus. The goal of the 
Ephesus Foundation was 
framed as to help Ephesus 
become one of the world’s 
premier tourist attractions by 
speeding up excavations in the 
ancient city and supporting its 
promotion on the international 
level. In this regard, the 
Ephesus Foundation also 
carries out promotional 
programs to support its 
activities in the national and 
international business world. In 
2013, work on the restoration 
of the frescoes in second and 
third living units of the Terrace 
House 2, located inside the 
ancient city of Ephesus, was 
completed. The Foundation 
supported these projects 
last year by creating a fund 
worth 196,500 Euros. Since 
its foundation in 2010, the 
Ephesus Foundation has 
contributed to the completion 
of 25 projects by raising a total 
funding of 950,450 Euros. Of 
this amount, Borusan Holding 
has itself contributed the sum 
of 470,500 Euros. 

The International Arena 
and Awards

Borusan’s efforts to strengthen 
the role of women in Turkey’s 
economy and create equality 
of opportunity for women in the 
workplace have also attracted 
the attention of the United 
Nations. At the fifth Annual 
United Nations Women’s 
Empowerment Principles 
meeting held on March 5-6, 
2013 in New York, Borusan 
presented its “My Mom’s 
Job is My Future” project, 
which had been selected as 
a model venture. In 2013, 
Borusan received the Bursa 
Business and Professional 
Women’s Association 
“Company Supporting Women 
in Business Life Award”. The 
“My Mom’s Job is My Future” 
project received the “Success 
Beyond Borders” award from 
the International Federation 
of Business and Professional 
Women in May of 2013. Back 
in 2012, with its signing of 
the United Nations Women’s 
Empowerment Principles, 
Borusan promised its support 
to women in business and 
society. The following year, 
in 2013, Borusan joined the 
“Equality at Work Platform”, 
a multiple-stakeholder 
organization, formed with 
the aim of ensuring gender 
equality in the process of 
women’s participation in the 
Turkish economy. This was a 
collaborative effort between 
the public and private sectors, 
NGOs, academics, the media 
and the World Economic 
Forum.

Support for Women Entrepreneurs-Microcredit 

Borusan also provides support to women entrepreneurs under the 
aegis of the work carried out towards women’s empowerment. 
The microcredit system was implemented in Turkey for the first 
time in 2003 in Diyarbakır and supported by the Grameen Trust 
and Türkiye İsrafı Önleme Vakfı (TİSVA, the Turkish Foundation 
for Waste Reduction). Enabling women with restricted incomes 
to start their own enterprises by providing start-up credit, the 
microcredit system requires neither collateral nor guarantors and 
it effectively removes the barriers for women to access financial 
aid. The system was inaugurated in 2009 in Afyonkarahisar with 
a protocol signed between Borusan, the Borusan Kocabıyık 
Foundation, the Governorship of Afyonkarahisar and TİSVA with 
a initial fund of 350,000 TL. At the end of 2013, the Afyon Asım 
Kocabıyık Microfinance Branch had disbursed 1.5 million TL 
in credit to 1,147 female entrepreneurs, enabling them to start 
their own businesses. In response to the widespread interest 
witnessed by the Afyonkarahisar Asım Kocabıyık Microfinance 
Branch, in 2013 Borusan opened its second microfinance 
branch in Bursa’s Gemlik district in collaboration with the Gemlik 
Municipality, the Gemlik District Governorship and TİSVA. At this 
branch, a total credit of 281,097 TL was loaned to 160 women 
aspiring to be entrepreneurs, primarily in the areas of trade, 
tailoring, lace handicrafts and jewelry making. 
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ENVIRONMENT

Having contributed to environmental 
sustainability through many of 
its projects, Borusan, with the 
inspiration and initiative of its 
Founder and Honorary President, 
the late Asım Kocabıyık, carried 
out a rural development project in 
the Afyonkarahisar village of Tazlar, 
in collaboration with the TEMA 
Foundation (The Turkish Foundation 
for Combating Soil Erosion, for 

Reforestation and the Protection of Natural Habitats). The venture’s highly successful results have 
become a source of motivation for similar projects to be carried out on wide scale in Turkey. 

Within the scope of its sponsorship of the 160 hectare afforestation project run by the Bursa 
Provincial Directorate of Forestry in Gemlik, and in line with Borçelik’s goal of “planting a sapling 
in the name of a customer for each coil produced”, the number of saplings planted had reached 
360,000 by the end of 2013. Beyond this, Borçelik is planning on planting 500,000 tree saplings till 
the end of 2015. Borusan Lojistik is engaged in the afforestation of two different areas in Ödemiş, 
Izmir and Kızıltepe, Mardin, chosen by the ÇEKÜL Foundation (Foundation for the Protection and 
Promotion of the Environment and Cultural Heritage) under its “7-Tree Forests” program, which was 
established in 1991. In this collaborative project between Borusan and ÇEKÜL, which commenced 
in September of 2011, Borusan Logistics has currently planted 240,000 trees. The project is to be 
completed in 2018.

BORUSAN OCEAN VOLUNTEERS
PLATFORM

The Borusan Ocean Volunteers Platform was founded in 2008 
with the goal of enabling Borusan employees to use their 
knowledge and skills in social responsibility projects in the fields of 
education, culture and the arts, the environment and human rights 
in a spirit of volunteerism. Aiming to facilitate employees to carry 
out projects where they serve as volunteers, as well as ensure 
the comprehension and adoption of the volunteerism concept 
and approach in the Borusan Group companies, the Platform 
clocked a total of 2,463 hours of voluntary work, involving 438 
volunteers, in 2013. A total of 45 events were organized, in 
a cooperative effort with 22 NGOs. Supporting the “Friend of 
School Program under the aegis of the Private Sector Volunteers 
Association, the Borusan Holding Ocean Volunteers worked with 
60 primary-school children in “Inquisitive Books Project” which 
can be implemented with 3rd, 4th and 5th grade primary-school 
students. Borusan also continued with its support for various 
Non- Governmental Organizations (NGOs) in 2013. 

STUDIO-X 
ISTANBUL

An initiative of Columbia 
University, Studio-X is 
found in only a few select 
cities around the world. 
Through the sponsorship 
of Borusan Holding, 
Studio-X was established 
in Istanbul in November of 
2013. Studio-X Istanbul 
aims to identify the current 
and future problems faced 
by the city and produce 
new solutions and ways of 
thinking. In line with this aim, 
Studio-X Istanbul will create 
a new platform facilitating 
the exchange of ideas and 
information between experts, 
universities, NGOs and local 
authorities. 
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LOGISTICS

ENERGY

STEEL
PIPE

DISTRIBUTORSHIP

FLAT STEEL

MACHINERY AND 
POWER SYSTEMS

AUTOMOTIVE

• Borusan Lojistik
• Borusan Logistics International

• Borusan Mannesmann Boru Yatırım Holding
• Borusan Mannesmann
• BM Vobarno
• Borusan Mühendislik
• Borusan İstikbal Ticaret • Borusan Mühendislik
• Borusan İstikbal Ticaret

• Borçelik
• Kerim Çelik

• Borusan Makina ve Güç Sistemleri
• Borusan Makina Kazakistan

• Borusan Otomotiv & Borusan Oto
• Supsan
• Manheim Türkiye

• Borusan EnBW Enerji

Borusan Group
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BORUSAN MANNESMANN

STEEL /PIPE

HAS ACQUIRED COMPETITIVE STRENGTH 
IN EXPORT MARKETS BY DIRECTING 
APPROXIMATELY 55% OF ITS TOTAL PRIME SALES 
TO OFFSHORE MARKETS

SEMİH ÖZMEN
Executive Committee Chairman
ZAFER ATABEY
Executive Committee Member, 
Commercial Director
KAĞAN ARI
Executive Committee Member, 
Finance Director
HAKAN DUMAN
Gemlik Operations Director
BUDDY BREWER 
President, BM Pipe US
EROL AKGÜLLÜ
Chief Investment Officer, BM 
Pipe US
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STEEL
Pipe

• Achieved the best results in recent years in sales volume and gross 
profit margins for steel pipes sold to the automotive sector.
• With the shutdown of the Izmit plant, all of the spiral pipe production 
has now been shifted to our new, high-tech Gemlik plant, which was 
built to manufacture oil and gas linepipes.
• The consortium that Borusan Mannesmann leads, succeeded 
in satisfying the preliminary qualification standards of TANAP gas 
pipeline project.

BORUSAN
MANNESMANN

• The leader in the Turkish 
steel market with more than 
40% market share in high 
value added products and 
one of the leading steel pipe 
manufacturers in Europe
• Intends to become a key 
American company and 
an important player in the 
OCTG pipe market in North 
America with its state of the art 
production plant in the 
United States
• Has acquired competitive 
strength in export markets 
by directing approximately 
53% of its total prime sales to 
offshore markets
• The market leader for 
special pipes in Turkey for the 
automotive sector.
• Planning to speed up 
projects for new and high value 
added products to achieve 
sustainable profits.
• Targeting new markets for 
spiral pipe sales

STRATEGIC 
POSITIONING

2013 
HIGHLIGHTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• With a $ 150 million investment in our new plant in Baytown, 
Texas, U.S, we took a major step on the road towards becoming 
a global manufacturing company. At this facility, alloy grades OCTG 
pipes will be produced for drilling of shale gas, one of the most 
important energy sources of the future. The plant, to be constructed 
in a 35,000 square-meter enclosed area, will begin production in the 
second half of 2014, employing a workforce of 300 people.
• In carrying out a number of projects aimed at reducing costs in 
order to increase our competitive edge, both in the domestic and 
export markets, we concentrated our efforts on a variety of value 
added products. In 2013, 7% of our turnover was generated from 
new products. A sizeable number of these new goods consisted of 
high value-added products intended for foreign markets.
• We made an investment in a cold drawing line that will both 
increase the existing capacity and also create swifter solutions in 
order to meet the demands of our customers. 
• Our Gemlik plant, recognized as the most highly developed spirally 
welded pipe manufacturing facility in Europe, is being prepared 
to produce materials for the Tanap Natural Gas Pipeline, referred 
to as the “project of the century”. This massive project involves 
the construction of a pipeline of 1,800 kilometers in length that 
will transport natural gas from from Azerbaijan through Turkey to 
Europe.

PARTNER
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BM Pipe US
Production Capacity
• 300,000 tpy well and OCTG production and processing capacity 
• Operational area of 500,000 square meters
Sectors Served
• North American OCTG and line pipe markets
Location
• Manufacturing plant in Houston, Texas, United States
BM Vobarno
Production Capacity
• Annual production capacity of 28,000 tons of cold-drawn special 
pipes 
• Operational area of 29,000 square meters
• Special steel pipes ranging from 20 mm to 140 mm in diameter
Sectors Served
• European manufacturing industries, primarily the automotive sector
Location
• Manufacturing plant in Vobarno, Italy
Borusan İstikbal Ticaret
• The oldest member of the Borusan Group
• Responsible for handling the Borusan Group’s flat steel and pipe 
exports
• Incorporated under Turkish law as a foreign trade company 

Field of Activity
Production and sale of steel pipes targeting domestic and international 
markets

Production
• Production array of more than 4,000 types of pipes, ranging in outer 
diameters from 4.6 mm to 3.048 mm and thicknesses of between 
0.7 mm and 25.4 mm
• Product range includes water pipes, general purpose pipes, natural 
gas and petroleum line pipes, industrial pipes and profiles, boiler tubes, 
casing and tubing pipes and spirally welded pipes
• The only manufacturer in Europe to manufacture large diameter pipes 
utilized for petroleum and natural gas lines
• Spirally welded line pipes produced within a range of 508 mm to 
3.048 mm for oil, gas and water line pipes, as well as piling applications. 
Coating facilities of PE, FBE, PP, Epoxy and Cement to serve unique 
customer specifications
Production Capacity
• An annual production capacity of over one million tons, which is 
comprised of 800,000 tons of longitudinally welded pipes and 250,000 
tons of spirally welded pipes 
Sectors Served
• Borusan Mannesmann is a diversified producer of tube and pipe 
products, serving the construction, energy and automotive markets with 
its wide range of products portfolio in longitudinally welded steel pipes.
• With its spirally welded pipes, Borusan Mannesmann also serves 
water, oil and gas pipeline projects in domestic and export markets.
Service Locations
• Bursa-Gemlik and Istanbul-Halkalı production plants
• 100 distributors within the dealer network

CORPORATE INFORMATION

In 2013, consolidated exports declined due 
to the shift of OCTG pipe sales through 
our US subsidiary, continuing slowdown in 
global economies and political disorder in 
some of the target markets

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

351

321

268

278

319

358

416

284

475

270

311

272

672 546 677 700 745 583

Prime Product Sales (Ktons)

Export

Domestic

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

24,0
14,4

35,8

82,9

30,1

138,2

Investment (US$ Millions)

Borusan Mannesmann
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BORÇELİK

STEEL /FLAT STEEL GROUP

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP WITH 
ARCELORMITTAL, THE LEADER IN THE WORLD 
STEEL SECTOR

PARTNER

ERKAN KAFADAR,
Managing Director
MESUT GÜNEY,
Production Director
OKAN AYDINGÜN, 
Finance and IT Director
GÜVENÇ TEMİZEL,
Supply Chain and Innovation 
Director
SİNAN SÖZEN,
Commercial Director
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STEEL
Flat Steel

• Despite all the adverse 
conditions in the Turkish steel 
sector, domestic market sales 
were increased by seizing 
upon our competitive strength.
• Achieved the highest 
level of shipments ever in 
domestic market and for the 
Hot Dipped Galvanized and 
Pickled & Oiled Hot-Rolled 
steel products.

• The first private flat steel 
producer in Turkey 
• Main supplier for large 
industrial companies
• Market share in Cold-
Rolled (CR) products: 16%
• Market share in Hot-
Dipped Galvanized (HDG) 
products: 24%
• Strategic partnership with 
ArcelorMittal, the leader in the 
world steel sector

BORÇELİK
STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

2013 BUSINESS 
RESULTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

• We focused primarily on 
developing new product, 
new service and business 
models. We completed 
the re-organization of our 
innovation department and 
furthered studies for increasing 
awareness about the 
innovation culture 
in the Company.
• We received the JIPM 
(Japanese Institute of Plant 
Maintenance) Award for 
Excellence in Consistent TPM 
Commitment. 
• We increased our 
performance and productivity 
by accelerating the Lean 6 
Sigma studies.

Production 
• Production activities in Hot-Dipped Galvanized steel, Cold-Rolled 
Annealed steel, and Pickled & Oiled Hot-Rolled steel groups, which are 
inputs for the industry.

• Range of steel products consists of commercial, drawing, deep-
drawing, extra-deep drawing, bake-hardening, structural grades, 
rephosphorized, HSLA (high strength low alloy), enameling and 
dual phase.

Production Capacity  
• A total capacity of 1.5 million tons
• Capacity distribution:
 • 600,000 tons of Cold-Rolled steel
 • 900,000 tons of Hot-Dipped Galvanized steel
 
Sectors Served   
• Borçelik’s major customer groups in the domestic market include 
producers of home appliances, automotive main and subcontractor 
industries, panel radiators, construction, color coating, pipes and 
profiles, packaging, metal goods sectors and steel service centers.

Location
Gemlik
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total Sales

K Tons

Exports

K Tons

470

55

35

6

24

103

69

60

54

4

24

EU

CIS

Other

Middle East

Far East

2012 2013

Total

223 211

Shipments

2012 2013

K Tons 1,358 1,352

2012 2013

Total

1,358 1,352

470

690

20

178

0,4

442

720

47

137

6

CR

HDG

PO

FH

Other
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KERİM ÇELİK

STEEL /FLAT STEEL GROUP

LARGEST STEEL SERVICE CENTER OF TURKEY 
IN TERMS OF PROCESSED MATERIAL VOLUME

A. KEREM ÇAKIR, 
Managing Director
H. BURÇIN FALAY, 
Support Functions Director
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STEEL
Flat Steel

• Sales volume at the Adana 
branch grew in terms of tons 
by 34.2%
• 2,184 visits were made to 
customers in 2013
• We have 514 customers 
with whom we actively do 
business.

• Largest steel service 
center of Turkey in terms of 
processed material volume
• The flat steel supplier of 
preference in Turkey for its 
customer specific supply 
solutions and services.

KERİM ÇELİK

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

2013
HIGHLIGHTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• According to an independent 
study, our Company is the 
most appreciated steel service 
center among corporate SSCs. 
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Sales by Year (K Tons)

Business Area
• In 1977, Kerim Çelik became the first Turkish company to provide world 
class service and expertise standards for the steel industry.
• Product range: cold-rolled, hot-dip galvanized, pre-painted, electrical 
steel, hot-rolled, pickled and oiled material in coils, slitted coils and sheets.

Production Capacity
580,000 tons of total capacity:
 • 150,000 tons in Tuzla
 • 130,000 tons in Manisa
 • 270,000 tons in Bursa
 • 30,000 tons in Adana

Industries Served
• Kerim Çelik supplies the following sectors: white goods, white goods 
supplier industry, automotive supplier industry, construction and supplier 
industries, machinery and spare parts industries, radiator, lighting, locked 
cabinet manufacturers, heating and ventilation, gasket, poultry supplies, 
steel cabinet manufacturers, furniture accessory manufacturers, cable and 
relay systems, pipe profile and other industries.

Locations
• The head office is located in Tuzla, Istanbul.
• The Production Branches are located in Tuzla, Manisa, Bursa and Adana.
• The regional sales staff are situated in Ankara and Antalya.

120

163

219

265 258

380

416
437

370

CORPORATE 
INFORMATION

PARTNER

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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BORUSAN OTOMOTİV 
AND BORUSAN OTO

DISTRIBUTORSHIP /AUTOMOTIVE

DISTRIBUTOR OF PREMIUM BRANDS BMW, MINI, 
LAND ROVER AND BMW MOTORCYCLES 

EŞREF BİRYILDIZ, 
Executive Committee Chairman
ALİ VAHABZADEH, 
Board Member, Executive 
Committee Vice Chairman
AYHAN ÖLÇER, 
Executive Committee Member, 
BMW Group Sales & Marketing 
Director
Y. ATİLLA ERMUTLU, 
Executive Committee Member, 
Aftersales Director
TİJEN ÇIDAM, 
Executive Committee Member, 
Borusan Oto Managing Director
KERİM KAZGAN, 
Executive Committee Member, 
Finance and Adm. Director
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DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Automotive

• Distributor of Premium 
brands BMW, MINI, Land 
Rover and BMW Motorcycles 
• To become the first 
choice for automobile and 
motorcycle enthusiasts while 
simultaneously maintaining 
the segment leadership 
position.
•  To provide driving pleasure 
and joyful moments with 
unique products 
and services.
• To extend the Dealer and 
Service network with new 
investments in the currently 
present provinces and 
by increasing the number 
of service points through 
investments at new locations.
• To ensure that every 
brand represented maintains 
its leading position in its 
respective segment emphasis 
is given to customer 
satisfaction, customer loyalty 
with focus to new products 
and new services.

BORUSAN
OTOMOTIV AND
BORUSAN OTO

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING
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• Borusan Otomotiv Group managed a turnover of  23,585 sales 
with all automobile brands and 458 sales with motorcycles.
• The highest retail sale of the last 29 years has been reached 
with the BMW and leadership in the premium segment has once 
again been achieved with 20,705 sales and 32.3% market share. 
Thus Borusan Otomotiv garnered  premium segment for the 26th 
time in past 30 years.
• Land Rover has maintained segment leadership position with 
1,323 sales.
• 1,557 sales have been realized with MINI.
• In the motorcycles category a total of 470 units (458 BMW and 
12 Husqvarna) were sold and the BMW market share has been 
17.1%. 
• Just as in 2012, the consolidated turnover of the used car 
division continued to rise, and a total of 3,433 automobiles have 
been sold in 2013, with a growth rate of 19.1%.
• A rate of 94% in Sales Customer Satisfaction and 85% in loyalty 
have been achieved in all brands and all Authorized Dealers. After 
Sales Satisfaction has been 88% and loyalty has been 71.5% for 
all brands and all Dealers.
• Total retail parts sales and labor turnover has been realized as 
114 million Euros for Borusan Otomotiv Services for all brands. 
• Premium Finance has financed credit for more than 7,500 cars 
in total, reaching levels of the number of personal vehicle loans 
provided by a medium scale bank in one year.
• BMW Service Inclusive sales in after sales services has reached 
15% of new car sales.
• All risks policy has been sold at an amount equivalent to 30% 
of Borusan Oto sales and a market share of 70% was achieved 
within these sales with the Premium All-risk Insurance.
• The Premium Kiralama A.Ş., established in 2012, has 
performed delivery of 856 cars by the end of 2013 and reached 
the level of a vehicle fleet of 1,971 cars. Therefore the number of 
vehicles has grown by 21% compared to the end of 2012. A total 
of 34 million Euros of turnover has been realized, with a rental 
income of 19 million Euros and used car sales revenue of 15 
million Euros.
• Another 50 of the Borusan Otomotiv Dealer network technicians 
have become Certified BMW Technician under the Technician 
Development Program.

2013 BUSINESS 
RESULTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• We have reached the highest sales total in the history of 
Borusan Otomotiv. We have won the BMW AG Segment 
Leadership award with 20,705 BMW sales. We have been 
awarded the Presidents Award 2013 by BMW AG.
• At the Golden Steering Wheel awards, the new BMW X5 has 
achieved the first place in Europe in the SUV category. BMW i3 
has been selected the best green technology automobile of the 
year in Europe and achieved the Green Steering Wheel award. 
Range Rover has been selected as the best SUV of 2013 by Auto 
Show readers. 
• We have been awarded at the 25th Crystal Apple 
Advertisements - Ambient category, with “The Wall Sensor” 
prepared by the TBWA creative agency explaining the park sensor 
offered as standard in the BMW 1 Series.
•  BMW i3 the serial production of the sub-brand of BMW, BMW i, 
was brought together with car fans at the pre-launch 
in Istanbul.  
• After the New Vehicle Sales module, we have implemented 
the Retail Performance Management module with BMW AG at 
our Dealers in order to increase retail performance in terms of 
customer satisfaction. 
• We have been chosen as the best distributor of BMW AG in 
After Sales.
• We have successfully realized the “Dealer Development 
Management” program in order to achieve excellence in after 
sales processes in terms of customer satisfaction and to improve 
key performance indicators at Borusan Otomotiv Service network. 
• At the Şikayetindex ranking in the upper segment of the 
automobile industry we have achieved first place in the Complaint 
Management success.
• We have implemented the 3 module After Sales Services 
Managers Certification Program with BMW AG. All participant 
Dealers After Sales Services Managers have successfully 
completed the program and acquired certificate from BMW AG.
• We have initiated the BMW Group Service Parts Management 
Support Program with the participation of stock and warehouse 
management expert, Max Dahlberg.



50

DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Automotive

BORUSAN
OTOMOTIV AND
BORUSAN OTO

Automotive Group Car Wholesale

Automotive Group Car Wholesale by Brand Automotive Group Car Retail Sales by Brand

Units

Units Units

Units

Automotive Group Car Retail Sales

2009 2009

2010 2010

2011 2011

2012 2012

2013 2013

8,576 8,961

15,349 15,057

18,727 18,892

18,457 18,595

23,180 23,585

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

1569
1296

20315

1695
1469

15293

763
2317

12269

1757
2205

14765

562
1547

6467

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

BMW MINILRBMW MINILR

1323
1557

20705
1590

1758

15247

708
2315

12034
2139

1735

15018

584
1648

6729
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Breakdown of 2013 
Automotive

Group Wholesale by Brand

Breakdown of 2013 
Automotive

Group Retail Sales by Brand

%87,6
BMW MINI

%6,8
LR
%5,6

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Brands
• Exclusive distributor of BMW in 
Turkey since 1984
• Distributor of BMW Motorcycles 
in Turkey since 1985
• Authorized sales and aftersales 
services provider of the Land 
Rover since 1998
• Distributor of the MINI in Turkey 
since 2001
• Started Borusan Oto Kıbrıs Ltd. 
Land Rover in 2008
• Distributor of Aston Martin in 
Turkey as of the last quarter 
of 2010
• Today, distributor of BMW, 
BMW Motorcycles, MINI and 
Land Rover.

Products and Services
• Passenger cars and 4x4 
vehicles, premium selection used 
cars, motorcycles, spare parts 
and aftersales services, long term 
automobile rentals and diplomatic 
car sales.

Dealership Network
• Borusan Otomotiv has 18 
authorized dealers and 27 
authorized service centers 
located across the seven main 
geographic regions of Turkey 
that provide sales and after-sales 
services for its products.
• Functioning as a Borusan 
Otomotiv dealer, Borusan Oto 
has sales and service center 
points in the Avcılar, Istinye and 
Dolmabahçe districts in Istanbul, 
as well as operations in the 
Esenboğa, Çankaya, Birlik and 
Balgat regions of Ankara, plus 
one each in the Adana-Mersin 
area and in Gaziantep.

%87,8
BMW MINI

%6,6
LR
%5,6

PARTNER

Giwa Holding
GmbH

% 50 - % 50 Equal Joint 
Venture
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SUPSAN

DISTRIBUTORSHIP /OTHER AUTOMOTIVE

THE LARGEST MANUFACTURER OF ENGINE 
VALVES IN TURKEY

SALİH ALSON, 
Managing Director
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DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Other Automotive

• A total of 5.3 million pieces 
were sold, and 5.3 million 
pieces were produced
• 1.45 million pieces were sold 
in the domestic aftermarket
• Independent OEM and 
aftermarket exports reached 
351,000 pieces 
• In products other than 
valves, the Company achieved 
$2.9 million in sales 
• Cam chain kit, crankshaft, 
cylinder head bolts products 
were developed.
• Sales figures were 
successful for gasket, cylinder 
head and valve tappet 
products.
• Shipment for Avtovaz 
(Russia) K4 began.
• Shipments for Ferrari new 
generation engines were 
carried out successfully.
• BMW and Mercedes audits 
were successfully completed.
• Through the organization of 
52 Small Training Meetings 
and 48 Traineeship Training 
Center Meetings, within 
the scope of the marketing 
strategy for Turkey, 3,000 
end-users were reached.

• Leader in the domestic 
OEM and aftermarket 
segments
• The largest manufacturer 
of engine valves in Turkey
• A partner who provides 
integrated solutions with 
new products in aftermarket 
segment 

SUPSAN

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

2013 
HIGHLIGHTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• We launched 38 valves and 
98 non-valve products during 
the year.
• We started a new kit system 
and increased the speed of 
spare parts shipments.
• We launched cylinder head 
revision set products for our 
aftermarket customers.
• With 96.6%, we obtained our 
best rate in Eaton shipment 
performance.
• We added cam chain sets, 
cylinder head bolts and crank 
shafts to our product range.
• We considered and studied 
15 ideas within the scope of 
innovation works and decided 
to produce turbo and cam 
shaft products.
• We found new suppliers 
in nitriding service and oil 
products.
• We made improvements in 
fault rates by achieving TPM 
4th step in our seven lines.
• We managed to make 
significant improvements in 
5S and occupational health 
and safety standards with 323 
before-after Kaizen studies.
• We made significant cost 
improvements through our 
Lean 6 sigma projects.
• We made an improvement 
with a rate of 53% in after 
market collection performance.

PARTNER
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Other Automotive

SUPSAN

2005

2004

2003

2002

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Million Units

Supsan Yearly Valve Sales 
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5,3

6,4

7,3

7

5,35,0

Export Distribution of Supsan on Country Basis

85%
Italy
5%
Germany

2%
France

5%
USA

3%
Romania

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Business Area
• International expertise in engine 
parts production and after sales 
services for original equipment 
and aftermarket
• Valve production for 
combustion engines with the 
Eaton SrL license, the leading 
manufacturer in the global market

Production Capacity
• 10 million valves per year
• 4 million pieces of stellited valve 
capacity, 5.5 million pieces of 
two-piece valve capacity

Sectors Served
• Original equipment 
manufacturers and aftermarket 
customers both within the country 
as well as in the global market

Service Points
Headquarters: Halkalı Plant
Domestic OEM: Ford Otosan, 
Oyak-Renault, Türk Traktör, 
Tümosan, Başak Traktör, Yavuz 
Mühendislik and Anadolu Motor
Domestic OES: Ford Otosan, 
Renault-Mais, Tofaş-Fiat, New 
Holland Trakmak, Iveco, Anadolu-
Isuzu, Otokar, Temsa, Karsan 
and DAF - Tırsan
Independent Aftermarket: 100 
dealers
International OEM & OES: Fiat, 
Peugeot-Citroen, Renault, Ford, 
Ferrari, Porsche, Bentley, Aston 
Martin, Nissan, Volkswagen, Audi, 
DAF, Volvo, Volvo Penta, Iveco, 
Isotta Fraschini, Mercedes-Benz, 
VM Motori, General Motors, 
Daimler Chrysler, John Deere and 
Detroit Diesel
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MANHEIM TÜRKİYE

DISTRIBUTORSHIP /OTHER AUTOMOTIVE

STEADY GROWTH IN THE USED CAR AUCTION 
BUSINESS WITH THE STRATEGY OF PROVIDING 
PHYSICAL AND ONLINE SOLUTIONS, OFFERING 
INNOVATIVE ALTERNATIVES TO OUR CUSTOMERS 
AND BEING A CUSTOMER AND TECHNOLOGY 
ORIENTED COMPANY. 

ZAFER TERZİOĞLU, 
Managing Director
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DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Other Automotive

• Sales volume increased 
from 10,640 units to 15,360, 
manifesting a 44% growth 
compared to the previous 
year.
• Profitability in terms of 
EBITDA reached $2.3 million, 
an astonishing annual increase 
of 1,074%.
• Cash profit rose from 
$21,000 to $1.9 million, 
reflecting a growth of 9,265% 
over 2012 figures.
• A new sales channel, Mobile 
Auction, was launched in 
line with our technology and 
customer oriented strategy.
• The Company won the 
“Sales Execution” award in the 
annual “M” Awards, organized 
globally by Manheim, thanks to 
our online sales success.
• The total number of 
customers increased by 16%, 
with active clients growing by 
11%.
• In all, 203 new supply 
customers were added. 

• Steady growth in the used 
car auction business with the 
strategy of providing physical 
and online solutions, offering 
innovative alternatives to 
our customers and being a 
customer and technology 
oriented company. 

MANHEIM 
TÜRKİYE

STRATEGIC 
POSITIONING

2013 
HIGHLIGHTS 

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• We increased our auction 
success rate from 32% to 
39%.
• We boosted our online sales 
share to 40% based on annual 
average.
• We raised the share of our 
sales in Anatolian cities, which 
are strategically important for 
our future, by 8%.
• We increased our sales of 
luxury cars by 147%.
• We began working with the 
top three Turkish banks on the 
supply side.
• We established our Customer 
Relations department.
• We renewed and upgraded 
our website.
• We reinforced our sales 
department with sales 
support teams.
• We established a Call Center 
team.
• We started applying the 
Club Manheim customer 
segmentation program, 
providing segment special 
service advantages and 
different services for VIP 
customers.
• We organized special 
service hotline for top segment 
Platinum customers of Club 
Manheim.

CORPORATE 
INFORMATION

Business Area:
Brings together buyers and sellers in a secure 
auction environment that is in compliance with all 
applicable industry laws and regulations

Products and Services:
• Private Auction
• Offer expert evaluation and pricing of domestic 
or imported second-hand motor vehicles, logistical 
support for the transportation of vehicles to 
“special auction sessions”, as well as facilitating all 
transactions between buyers and sellers by handling 
documentation and financial transfers  
• Sales of all brands of automobiles
• Sellers from various cities who are the members 
of the system participate in the private auctions 
organized each week in Tuzla and Ankara.

Online Sales Systems:
• Simulcast
• CyberStock
• CyberAuction
• Mobile Auction

Service Locations: 
• Headquarters at Tuzla, Istanbul
• Ankara Branch- Esenboğa

PARTNER
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Auction Sales 

Number of Members

1,505
559

4,000

2,010

4,068

6,389

11,031

12,745

10,640

15,360

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

OPERATIONAL 
INFORMATION

Units
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296 297 289
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BORUSAN MAKİNA VE 
GÜÇ SİSTEMLERİ

DISTRIBUTORSHIP /MACHINERY and POWER SYSTEMS

LEADERSHIP IN HEAVY MACHINERY AND POWER 
SYSTEMS IN TURKEY AND CENTRAL ASIAN 
COUNTRIES SINCE ITS ESTABLISHMENT

ERCÜMENT İNANÇ, 
Executive Committee Chairman, 
Chief Operating Officer
MURAT ERKMEN, 
Executive Committee Member, 
Turkey Managing Director
ÖZGÜR GÜNAYDIN, 
Executive Committee Member, 
International Business and 
Mining Managing Director
ÖMER METİ,
Executive Committee Member, 
Investments and Development  
Director
ASLAN HİÇSOLMAZ, 
Executive Committee Member, 
Chief Financial Officer
İ. TOLGA AKAR,
Executive Committee Member, 
Power Systems Managing 
Director
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DISTRIBUTORSHIP
Machinery and Power Systems

• Leadership in heavy machinery 
and power systems in Turkey 
and Central Asian countries 
since its establishment
• A solution partner to 
customers with the RUN 
Concept, which provides 
different options for new 
machine, rental and 
used operations
• Cat Rental Store is currently 
the most preferred company for 
customers interested in rentals. 
• A business partner who 
creates solutions and value with 
different products in customer 
support functions, along with its 
unique customer support set-up 
in after sales services
• The largest service expansion 
with its own personnel 
in the sector
• Became one of the most 
important players in the mining 
sector with Caterpillar’s 
acquisition of Bucyrus, the 
mining machinery manufacturer 

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

• Fully integrated, 
comprehensive Connected 
Site Solutions for construction 
industry and heavy construction 
machinery fleets, with SITECH 
Eurasia company 
• The most preferred supplier, 
offering extended package 
solutions and alternatives 
oriented towards customers’ 
needs, with the new products 
(EMD, CAT Propulsion) added in 
its product range 
• Turn-key contract solutions 
(EPC): engineering services with 
added value, a solution partner 
developing business models 
in the field of electro mechanic 
systems contracts 
• Offering comprehensive 
solutions from a single point 
with supplementary products 
offered under the umbrella of the 
registered trademark BESys
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2013 BUSINESS 
RESULTS

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• A total of 1,717 units of new machinery sold, 
of which 1,521 units were of CAT brand and 196 
units of which were supplementary products. 
Maintained market leadership with a turnover 
amounting to  175 million.
• A record turnover was obtained in the rental 
business. Total revenue for 2013 reached 
 12.4 million, while overall value of the fleet 

amounted to  42 million.
• In our used equipment operations, a total sales 
of  37.2 million was attained in 2013, while an 
all-time record was set in terms in terms of units 
of sales, which amounted to 537 pieces sold.
• The operation field was expanded in the 
personnel lift platform market with the Genie 
brand, as 183 units of equipment were sold and/
or rented.
• The Turkey and Kazakhstan service operations 
achieved the Service Gold Level for the third 
consecutive year in the Caterpillar Service 
Excellence evaluation
• Turkey Customer Support sales reached 
the level of  81.2 million, an increase of 5% 
compared to the previous year.
• In the area of Equipment Management, the 
number of machines with active maintenance 
agreements reached 3,859 units, while the 
number of equipment with condition tracking 
agreements reached 294.
• At the Renewal/Reconditioning and Hydraulics 
Center, operations with a turnover amounting to 
 2.4 million was achieved.

• CAT brand power capacity reached the level 
of 48 MW with six new G3520C unit contracts 
signed by the  Power Systems Business 
Department with Aktobe Copper Company in 
Kazakhstan.
• The budgeting and tracking system was 
established for the sales, service and spare parts 
of the SEM brand heavy duty machinery launched 
in the Kazakhstan market. SEM sales reached the 

level of $3.2 million.
• In the Azerbaijan Power Systems operation, 
we carried out our first rental project in the petrol 
segment with 5 MW power installation under a 
contract valid for two years.
• Our new facility was launched in Georgia.
• A component revision contract was signed with 
Kumtor, the largest mine operator in Kyrgyzstan.
• The highest customer support sales volume 
was achieved in our international operations.
• The first machinery revision was carried out in 
Karaganda CRC.
• A 5-star level was attained in contamination 
control at our Baku, Azerbaijan workshop. 
• SITECH Eurasia two and three dimensioned 
machinery control systems sold 62 units and 
reached $4 million in sales, both record turnover 
rates since the Company was established.
• The first MaK 9M43 cover revisions were 
successfully carried out in the renewal center.
• The first 5 MW petrol segment rental package’s 
sale and installation was completed, while the 
PowerSystems operation in Azerbaijan doubled 
in size.  
• The panel production in the Electricity 
Workshop was increased by up to 350 units 
within a period of less than one year.
• The manufacturing of the BESys diesel cabin, 
cogeneration systems and lighting tower with the 
BESys brand was launched in the mechanical 
packaging facility.
• The all-time highest head revision figures were 
attained in gas engines.
• High customer satisfaction was attained with 
Vibration Analysis and Borescope service without 
any malfunctioning by diagnosing, as well as 
reducing, the unit downtime and cost. 

• We added new products to 
our existing goods range by 
obtaining the representation 
rights to Mecalac.
• We added the Caterpillar 
brand Bucyrus mining products 
to our product range in order 
to be able to offer solutions 
specific to the mining sector 
and the established mining 
business department in Turkey, 
Azerbaijan and Georgia.
• We implemented 
improvements and renovations 
in our processes in order 
to create customer value 
oriented towards the output 
of the customer experience 
management project which was 
build along with Caterpillar and 
demonstrated as a model to the 
other dealers.
• We established a New 
Product Development and 
Innovation Department, and we 
developed six ongoing projects, 
plus thirty five project ideas.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Field of Activity
• Dealer for Caterpillar in Turkey since 1994
• Caterpillar’s sole representative in Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan 
and Kyrgyzstan, as well as in Turkey 
• The sole representative in Turkey of Metso Nordberg, the world 
leader in mobile breaker and screener units; Mecalac, the firm offering 
innovative, compact solutions for heavy duty machinery; Mantsinen port 
cranes; Atlas Copco brand hydraulic breakers; Genie brand personnel 
lift platforms; and Exxon Mobil products. 
• The rental representative of Wacker Neuson construction equipment, 
as well as Atlas Copco and Kaeser compressors
• The representative of heavy fuel oil MaK marine engines with medium 
range revolution, Olympian diesel and gas generator sets and SPX 
ClydeUnion pump brands
• Electromechanical contract solutions in energy and industry facilities
• The representative of the SEM brand in Kazakhstan, as well as 
in Turkey
• The representative of the Trimble firm, SITECH’s sub company and 
a global leader in machine dispatch and control systems of SITECH 
Eurasia in Turkey, Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan and Kyrgyzstan 

Products and Services
• Machinery sales and after sales support services
• Provide low cost and increase in efficiency for customers by offering 
new machines, as well as those up to two years old, plus components, 
under the auspices of the Cat Rental Store
• The “Certified Used Concept” supplies a unique warranty service for 
used equipment in Turkey
• Energy systems applications such as diesel and gas motor-
cogeneration, mechanical power applications (pump stations, 
compressor systems, etc.) and emergency generators and 
power systems
• Biogas and landfill turnkey energy plants
• Marine systems for main and auxiliary engines
• Used and rental generator business
• Static and dynamic UPS
• Electrical systems and automation systems integration in energy and 
industrial contract projects with BESys brand, supplementary products 
and services within the scope of mechanical packaging
• Providing financing solutions for all segments
• Machine dispatch and control systems of SITECH Eurasia, which 
are compatible with all kinds of machine brands in the service of the 
construction industry

Sectors Served
• General and heavy construction, mining, agricultural and 
industrial sectors
• Textiles, steel, chemical, medical, ceramics, wood industry, 
automotive, plastics and food sectors
• The energy sector, including business centers, hotels, hospitals, 
airports, universities and public housing 
• Municipalities, provincial, special administrations, as well as all other 
public institutions via the State Supply Office 
• Marine sector-related solutions offered to builders of tugboats, mega 
yachts, motor yachts, cargo ships and sea busses
• Transportation projects in the construction sector such as highways, 
railroads and airports, utilizing the products and services provided by 
SITECH Eurasia, as well as corporate, industrial and housing projects

Service Locations
• The headquarters of Borusan Makina ve Güç Sistemleri is located 
in Istanbul. Our branches, which provide sales and technical services 
in Antalya, Bursa, Diyarbakır, Trabzon and Trakya, are managed by 
regional offices in Adana, Ankara, Istanbul and Izmir.
• There are 46 service locations in Turkey and another 14 in 
Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Azerbaijan and Georgia.
• SITECH Eurasia has two offices in Istanbul, one of which is the 
headquarters and the other being center for sales and marketing.
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BORUSAN LOJİSTİK

LOGISTICS

THE LEADER OF THE LOGISTICS SECTOR IN 
TURKEY AFTER THE ACQUISITION OF BALNAK; 
AN IMPORTANT PLAYER IN GLOBAL MARKETS, 
PARTICULARLY IN EUROPE, THE MIDDLE EAST AND 
THE COMMONWEALTH OF INDEPENDENT STATES

KAAN GÜRGENÇ, 
Managing Director
SERDAR ERÇAL, 
Logistics Director
İBRAHIM DÖLEN, 
Port and International 
Transportation Director
MUSTAFA ÖÇALIR, 
Foreign Countries Director
TUĞBA PAŞALI KARACAN, 
Organizational Development and 
Support Functions Director
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LOGISTICS

• Borusan Lojistik experienced an immense leap in its growth 
trend in 2013, thanks to the inorganic investment it made the 
previous year. An increase in turnover and capacity, a wider 
range of services and extended geographical coverage, all 
coming via inorganic growth, vaulted the Company into a 
leadership position in terms of numbers, as well. Concurrent 
with this leap, Borusan Lojistik kept the value it created for 
customers with projects of marked by productivity 
and innovation.      
• Through the synergy created by the acquisition of Balnak, 
Borusan Lojistik is now able to use its strong service network 
in Europe, an advantage that is starting to put its mark on the 
Company’s financial results.  
• The third phase of the investment at the Borusan Port has 
been completed and, thanks to its increasing capacity, the port 
has a stronger competitive advantage for the Company. 
• Operational investments continued and the IT infrastructure 
was reinforced and developed throughout 2013. 
• In 2013, Borusan Lojistik focused on the production of 
innovative and creative services, as well as continued its 
approach of segmented customer services, all while increasing 
the quality of its service and customer satisfaction. As a 
consequence, the Company successfully implemented its 
strategy of profitable growth.  
• Through ETA, the brand it launched in 2013, Borusan Lojistik 
provided an innovative platform for small and medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs) and began serving them. 

• One of the Borusan 
Group’s strategic businesses 
since 2000  
• The leader of the logistics 
sector in Turkey after the 
acquisition of Balnak; an 
important player in global 
markets, particularly in 
Europe, the Middle East and 
the CIS Countries 
• A fast growing business 
model, which ensures 
sustainable profitability 
through projects distinguished 
by productivity and innovation 
• Ownership of a port, 
which provides a significant 
competitive edge through its 
strategic position 
• A Borusan Group company 
that creates synergy and 
drives dynamism and growth      

BORUSAN 
LOJİSTİK

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

2013
HIGHLIGHTS

WHAT WE HAVE ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• While improving its performance of sustainable success in 2013, Borusan Lojistik continued to manage 
resources and cost efficiently.
• Giving high importance to its innovative and creative services, the Company gained new customers 
from industries with high growth rates. 
• Business unit–based segmented customer management increased customer satisfaction and loyalty.  
• Borusan Lojistik’s strong performance reflected well in the various prestigious surveys of the Turkish 
business world last year. In the 16th annual Capital 500 list, prepared by Capital Magazine, Borusan 
Lojistik rose to the 146th position, up from its 285th placing on the same list in 2012. Thus, Borusan 
Lojistik was able to leap over 139 other companies in a single year. The same survey put Borusan 
Lojistik in 6th place among the top 25 companies with the highest increase in turnover. 
• On the list of the CEO’s Favorite Companies, which was also prepared by Capital Magazine, Borusan 
Lojistik placed among the top three most popular companies in the logistics sector. 
• The Fortune 500 survey is another prestigious analysis that lists companies in terms of different 
parameters such as net sales, total assets, equity capital, profitability and exports. Last year, Fortune 
500 listed Borusan Lojistik at No. 194, whereas the Company’s position the previous year 
had been No. 217.    
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Logistics Sales Grow

Logistics Sales by Service Line

US$ Millions

US$ Millions Group
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Non Group

Int. Trans. Sales
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As the volume of business with the Borusan Group companies 
decreased by 11%, business with non-Group companies 
increased by 86%. 

The total volume of 
sales grew by 58%. 
The biggest increase 
took place in the 
field of International 
Transportation with 
124%. The increase of 
3PL sales was 36%, 
whereas those for port 
sales was 11%.  

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 
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LOGISTICS

BORUSAN 
LOJİSTİK

Land Transportation (Million Tons)

2011 2012 2013 2011 2012 2013 2011 2012 2013

Business Volume Business Volume Business Volume
Port Container (TEU) Port Vehicle Park (Units)

5,8
6,6

7,5 195.194

164.250

189.099

154.891

218.399
200.936

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Services
• Borusan Lojistik focuses on the operational areas of port services, international transportation services, 
domestic logistics services in Turkey and international logistics services abroad. It manages all these 
services over a large geographical area thanks to its expertise and an approach focused on productivity, 
as well as creating synergy for each other.  
• In 2011 and 2013, new companies in Kazakhstan and Oman were added to the collection of Borusan 
Logistics companies. These new acquisitions are 100% funded by Borusan Lojistik and are active in the 
United States, Europe, North Africa, the Middle East and the CIS Countries.
• Created as a consequence of the importance which Borusan Lojistik gives to innovation, ETA is the first 
and only brand of its kind in Turkey. With its innovative business model, ETA moves transportation services 
to an online platform and provides services for SMEs. 

The Industries Serviced by Borusan Lojistik:   
Iron, steel, textiles, automotive and automotive supply, consumer durables, fast moving consumer goods, 
chemical, high technology, construction and container lines are among the many industries to which 
Borusan Lojistik provides services.   

Points of Service 
• Head Office is in the Kozyatağı district of Istanbul 
• Port in Gemlik
• Offices in Güneşli, Tepeören, Kıraç, Gebze, Çatalca, Izmir, Bursa, Ankara, Mersin, and Ereğli 
• Vehicle Logistics Center in Köseköy, Izmit is built on an area of 214,000 m2

• 87 land transportation offices, 12 transfer centers
• A total of 600,000 m2 in storage space
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BORUSAN EnBW ENERJİ

ENERGY 

AIMING TO BECOME THE LEADING 
WIND ENERGY COMPANY IN TURKEY

MEHMET ACARLA, 
Managing Director
MEHTAP ANIK ZORBOZAN, 
Finance Director
ENİS AMASYALI, 
Investments Director
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ENERGY

• Aiming to become the leading wind energy company in Turkey
• Working towards an investment target of $ 3.5 billion by 2020
• With the goal of becoming one of Turkey’s lowest cost electricity 
generators by
 - Investing in the most efficient projects
 - Establishing a flexible and reliable portfolio consisting of various  
 energy resources
 - Employing cost cutting technologies and technologies in   
 investment and operations
• Focusing primarily on renewable resources
• Taking an active role in electricity generation and sales sectors
• Playing a leading role in electricity trading in the market
• Increasing installed generation capacity to 2,000 MW by 2020

BORUSAN
EnBW ENERJİ

STRATEGIC
POSITIONING

• Necessary siting and design 
studies were conducted for the 
portfolio projects.
• All necessary legal 
permissions were completed 
for Balabanlı WEPP and the 
ground-breaking ceremony was 
held on September 18, 2013 
with the participation of local 
authorities.
• Energy supply to Borusan 
Group Companies continued, 
plus our first non-Group energy 
sale was made to Coca Cola 
içecek A.Ş. 
• Investment decisions were 
made for Fuatres WEPP, 
Harmanlık WEPP, Mut WEPP, 
Koru WEPP Projects and 
capacity increase for Bandırma 
WEPP in total 207 MW.  Also, a 
turbine supply and maintenance 
tender was completed and the 
contract was signed.

2013 BUSINESS 
RESULTS 

WHAT WE HAVE 
ACHIEVED TOGETHER

• With regards to energy sales 
and trading, we developed 
new products in line with the 
expectations and needs of 
our customers, such as green 
energy products.
• We enhanced our processes 
and make them effective 
through Lean 6 Sigma projects.
• We managed to internalise 
maintenance activities at our 
operational plants.
• Our Bandırma Wind Energy 
Power Plant broke generation 
records both on daily (1,39 
GWh - July 2013) and monthly 
(27,4 GWh - August 2013) 
levels.
• By providing a more secure 
and effective operation, our 
Yedigöl Aksu Hydroelectricity 
Power Plant generated energy 
at a rate of 3% more than 
forecasted.
• We completed the first ISO 
9001 follow up audits at our 
central office and Bandırma 
WEPP locations, with zero 
non-conformances.
• We initiated sustainability 
works on various platforms 
within the Company.

Existing Portfolio Target Portfolio

Wind
62%

735 MW 2000 MW

Wind
76%

Hydro
14%

Solar
10%

Hydro
38%

PARTNER

SECTORS SERVED

Sectors to which services 
were provided
• Balancing power market 
• Eligible consumers 
(industrial and commercial 
customers who consume 
5,000 kWh/a)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Borusan Holding Anonim Şirketi
Istanbul

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Borusan Holding A.Ş. and its subsidiaries (Borusan Holding and its Subsidiaries - together the “Group”), 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Group Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Group Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Group Management as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Borusan Holding A.Ş. and its Subsidiaries as of 31 December 2013 and of 
their consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Istanbul, 4 March 2014

DRT BAĞIMSIZ DENETİM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECİ MALİ MÜŞAVİRLİK A.Ş.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMAT LIMITED
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The accompanying policies and explanatory notes on pages 90 through 156 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

ASSETS

   Restated Restated
 Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 1 January 2012

Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents  6  344,024,875   397,073,939  329,162,407
Trade receivables 7  402,445,906   476,984,858  398,413,757
Inventories 8  688,896,907   633,432,277  603,454,604
Other receivables and assets 9  113,720,431   165,520,847  134,219,988

   1,549,088,119   1,673,011,921 1,465,250,756 

Assets classified as held for sale 21  63,937,993   1,125,300 1,627,993 

Total current assets   1,613,026,112   1,674,137,221 1,466,878,749 

Non-current assets   
Trade receivables 7  3,183,336   699,559  318,617
Available-for-sale financial assets   4,393,238   4,345,855  4,419,222
Property, plant and equipment 11  1,481,201,042   1,385,109,116  1,267,251,507
Advances given for property, plant and equipment   1,693,453   16,556,662  31,264,147
Intangible assets 12  67,848,884   54,001,492  17,739,638
Goodwill 10  47,519,907   47,519,907  10,811,630
Investment in a joint venture 30 96,401,767 91,861,734 65,434,596
Deferred tax assets 17  1,059,146   8,297,429  7,516,171
Other receivables and assets 9  74,144,144   27,773,299  31,900,445

Total non-current assets   1,777,444,917   1,636,165,053  1,436,655,973

Total assets   3,390,471,029   3,310,302,274 2,903,534,722

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2013 
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

 Notes  31 December 2013 Restated 31 December 2012 Restated 1 January 2012

Current liabilities    
Trade payables 13  637,144,170   562,108,052   597,902,558 
Short-term borrowings 14  543,766,379      732,799,518   521,757,199 
Current portion of long-term borrowings 15  126,371,732   108,978,797   91,295,706 
Income tax payable 17  11,660,912   16,730,737   16,638,035 
Other payables and expense accruals 16  143,862,209      179,912,714   131,462,923 

Total current liabilities   1,462,805,402   1,600,529,818   1,359,056,421 

Non-current liabilities    
Trade payables 13  68,210,651   43,150,797   -   
Long-term borrowings 15  731,776,364   586,250,884   479,409,436 
Employee benefits obligation 18  25,048,231   28,427,376   21,229,947 
Deferred tax liabilities 17  91,717,120   68,608,464   69,883,729 
Other payables and expense accruals 16  2,222,632   1,965,283   1,018,317 

Total non-current liabilities   918,974,998   728,402,804   571,541,429 

Total liabilities   2,381,780,400   2,328,932,622   1,930,597,850 

Equity    
Paid-in share capital 19  46,044,080   46,044,080   46,044,080 
Currency translation reserve   7,837,158   7,703,395   4,302,345 
Revaluation reserve, net  11  144,399,338   143,429,138   147,278,004 
Cash flow hedge reserve   (484,799)  (1,264,943)  (503,980)
Actuarial gain / (loss) from 
   employee benefits 18  (1,602,320)  (1,022,922)  -   
Legal reserves and retained earnings   303,211,614   282,696,883   266,263,603 

Equity attributable to equity 
   holders of the parent   499,405,071   477,585,631   463,384,052 
Non-controlling interests   509,285,558      503,784,021      509,552,820 

Total equity   1,008,690,629   981,369,652   972,936,872 

Total liabilities and equity   3,390,471,029   3,310,302,274   2,903,534,722

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2013 
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes on pages 90 through 156 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



  1 January -  Restated 1 January - 
 Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Net sales 22  4,141,239,966   3,975,807,662 
Cost of goods sold and services provided  23  (3,641,025,134)  (3,532,158,167)
   
Gross profit   500,214,832   443,649,495 
   
Selling, general and administrative expenses 24  (286,293,404)  (269,255,342)
Other operating (expense)/income, net 27  45,770,271   13,220,156    
Financial income 28  16,860,586   23,291,186 
Financial expense 28  (85,955,553)  (88,421,127)
Share of loss of a joint venture 30  (20,125,604)  (10,425,185)
Translation gain/(loss)   (4,297,528)  9,627,165 
   
Profit before tax   166,173,600   121,686,348 
   
Taxation on income   (61,125,288)  (30,977,289)
  - Current (statutory) 17  (31,822,746)  (38,539,673)
  - Deferred 17  (29,302,542)  7,562,384 
   
Profit for the year from continuing operations   105,048,312   90,709,059 
   
 Loss for the year from discontinued operations  21  -     (502,693)
   
Net profit for the year   105,048,312   90,206,366 
   
Other comprehensive income :    
 Items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss:    
 - Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment net-off tax   13,120,876   -   
 - Actuarial gain/(loss) net off tax 18  (1,068,270)  (1,681,823)
 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:    
 - Loss/(gain) on cash flow hedge instruments net-off tax   1,133,025   (1,576,116)
 - Currency translation reserve   3,834,621   5,793,202 
   
Total comprehensive income for the year   122,068,564   92,741,629 
   
Net profit for the year   
Attributable to non-controlling interests   51,377,334   46,837,281 
Attributable to equity holders of parent   53,670,978   43,369,085 
   
   105,048,312   90,206,366 
Total comprehensive income for the year   
Attributable to non-controlling interests   64,147,373   47,780,748 
Attributable to equity holders of parent   57,921,191   44,960,881 
   
   122,068,564   92,741,629

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes on pages 90 through 156 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Balance at 31 December 2011  46,044,080   -   147,278,004   4,302,345   (503,980)  266,263,603   463,384,052   509,552,820   972,936,872

Total comprehensive income  -   (1,022,922)  (4,689,820)  3,401,050   (760,963)  48,033,536   44,960,881   47,780,748   92,741,629
Effect of acquisition of subsidiary 
shares   -     -   840,954   -     -     (15,775,112)  (14,934,158)  (6,177,968)  (21,112,126)
Dividends paid  -     -   -     -     -     (15,825,144)  (15,825,144)  (47,371,579)  (63,196,723)

Balance at 31 December 2012  46,044,080   (1,022,922)  143,429,138   7,703,395   (1,264,943)  282,696,883   477,585,631   503,784,021   981,369,652

Total comprehensive income  -     (579,398)  3,915,640   133,763   780,144   53,671,042   57,921,191   64,147,373   122,068,564
Non-controlling interests 
contribution to capital increase in
subsidiary  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     2,375,197   2,375,197
Effect of acquisition and disposal
of subsidiary shares  -     -     (2,945,440)  -     -     (14,277,573)  (17,223,013)  (6,463,942)  (23,686,955)
Dividends paid  -     -     -     -     -     (18,878,738)  (18,878,738)  (54,557,091)  (73,435,829)

Balance at 31 December 2013  46,044,080   (1,602,320)  144,399,338   7,837,158   (484,799)  303,211,614   499,405,071   509,285,558   1,008,690,629
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BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

Paid-in 
share 

capital

Currency 
translation 

reserve
Actuarial 

gain / (loss)
Revaluation 

reserve

Cash
flow

hedge 
reserve

Legal 
reserves 

and 
retained 
earnings

Equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders' of 
the parent

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity

Items that may not be
reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

Items that may be
reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes on pages 90 through 156 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

   Restated
  1 January- 1 January-
  31 December  31 December
 Notes 2013  2012
Cash flows provided from operating activities:  
Profit before taxation on income, non-controlling interest and discontinued operations  166,173,600 121,686,348 
Loss before tax from discontinued operation   - (502,693)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before taxation to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation  26  91,015,775 93,882,747
Amortization of intangible assets 26  10,379,564 6,476,866
Interest income 28 (8,339,076) (9,694,373)
Due date income, net 28  (6,725,580) (13,596,813)
Interest expense  28  76,118,363 77,669,522
Impairment on inventory recognised in profit or loss 8  8,585,017 1,253,968
Reversal of prior year impairment on inventory 8  (3,116,284) (2,823,816)
Provision for reserve for employee benefit obligations 18  4,559,396 5,874,592
Gain/(loss) on sale of property,
   plant and equipment and intangibles 27  (19,394,446) (1,308,112)
Net change in currency translation reserve  (18,271,600) 22,082,511
Provision for doubtful receivables 7  4,016,482 5,144,629
  
Operating profit before working capital changes   305,001,211 306,145,376
  
Working capital changes  
Change investment in a joint venture   (4,540,033) (26,427,175)
Trade receivables   71,282,472 (48,491,971)
Inventories   (61,371,202) (28,532,976)
Other current assets and liabilities – net    43,542,558 20,536,200
Trade payables   100,095,972 (9,667,079)
Other non-current assets and liabilities – net   (45,607,502) 2,769,595
Employee benefit obligations paid 18  (6,014,123) (3,082,719)
Taxes paid 17  (43,105,909) (45,048,455)
  
   - -
Net cash provided by operating activities   359,283,444 168,200,796

The accompanying policies and explanatory notes on pages 90 through 156 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

(*) Decrease in “advances given for property, plant and equipment” amounting to USD 14,863,209 is net-off with “purchase of property, plant and equipment” for the year ended
31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: Decrease USD 14,707,485 is included).

  1 January- 1 January-
  31 December 31 December
 Notes 2013  2012
Investing activities:  
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (*)  (311,761,372) (309,346,411)
Purchase of intangible assets 12  (24,268,405)  (9,852,494)
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries   (23,686,955)  (21,771,027)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
and intangibles   127,437,112 130,674,479 
Interest received   15,064,656   23,291,186 
Acquisition of subsidiary 29  -     (67,173,975)

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations   (217,214,964)  (254,178,242)

Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations   -   502,693 

Net cash used in investing activities   (217,214,964)  (253,675,549)
  
Financing activities:  
Redemption of borrowings   (3,151,283,506)  (2,053,015,638)
Proceeds from borrowings   3,131,897,554   2,349,693,415 
Change in financial receivables from non-consolidated related parties   (20,490,000)  (2,873,846)
Dividends paid (including dividends of non-controlling interests)   (73,435,829)  (63,196,693)
Interest paid   (84,180,960)  (77,220,953)
Increase in share capital of subsidiary   2,375,197   -   

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities of continuing operations   (195,117,544)  153,386,285 

Net cash provided by financing activities of discontinued operations   -     -   

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities    (195,117,544)  153,386,285 
  
  
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (53,049,064)  67,911,532 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   397,073,939   329,162,407 
  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6  344,024,875   397,073,939
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BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

General 

Borusan Holding A.Ş. and its Subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Borusan Group” or the “Group”) commenced operations in 1944 as Borusan İstikbal Ticaret T.A.Ş., a company, 
trading steel products and exporting dried fruit.

Borusan Holding A.Ş. (“Borusan Holding” or the “Holding”) was established in December 1972 as a corporation to coordinate the activities of and liaise between companies operating 
in different fields including steel business (pipe and flat steel production), distributorship of leading brands (BMW, Land Rover and Caterpillar) and integrated logistics. Borusan Holding 
is registered in Turkey and owned by members of the Kocabıyık Family (see Note 19). The registered address of the Holding is as follows:

Meclis-i Mebusan Caddesi No: 35-37
Fındıklı - Istanbul – Turkey

Nature of Activities of the Group

The principal activities of Borusan Group comprise the following: 
• manufacturing of steel pipes: longitudinally and spirally welded for sale in domestic and foreign markets;
• manufacturing of cold rolled coils, galvanized coils and metal sheets for sale in domestic and foreign markets;
• exclusive sales and after sales services of BMW, MINI, Land Rover and Aston Martin vehicles and car rental services in Turkey;
• exclusive sales and after sales services of Caterpillar, earthmoving equipment and power systems, in Turkey and Central Asia;
• providing integrated logistic services, shipping, port activities, warehousing and customs clearance services;
• manufacturing of engine valves for the automotive industry for sale in domestic and foreign markets;
• generation and wholesaling of electricity.

Since September 1998, Borusan Holding has a controlling interest in a sub-holding company, Borusan Mannesmann Boru Yatırım Holding A.Ş., which was established to coordinate 
the activities of Borusan Mannesmann Boru Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., a listed company in the Istanbul Stock Exchange (the “ISE”). In addition, Borusan Holding controls three investment 
companies; Borusan Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş., a listed company in the ISE, Borusan İstikbal Ticaret T.A.Ş. and Borusan Teknolojik Yatırımlar Holding A.Ş.

The Group is organized mainly in Turkey into four main business segments:
• Steel segment
• Distributorship segment
• Energy segment
• Logistics segment

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise valves production.

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2013 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 4 March 2014.



BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(1) The liquidation process of these entities has been ended as at 28 March 2013.
(2) KMFRES Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. has merged under Borusan EnBW Enerji Yatırımları ve Üretim A.Ş. as of 28 February 2013.
(3) This subsidiary is in liquidation process.
(4) Trade name of Borusan Paslanmaz Çelik Boru ve Profil Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Paslanmaz Boru") has been changed as Bortrade Uluslararası Tic A.Ş. ("Bortrade") at 2 December 2013.

Borusan Holding has the following subsidiaries (“the Subsidiaries”). Business segments and the locations of Subsidiaries are as follows:

Business Segment Subsidiary                                                                                                                                                                        Location/ Incorporated in
  
Flat Steel Borçelik Çelik Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş. ("Borçelik") Gemlik - Turkey
 Kerim Çelik Mamulleri İmalat ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Kerim Çelik") İstanbul - Turkey
 Bortrade Uluslararası Tic. A.Ş. ("Bortrade") (4) Gebze - Turkey
Steel Pipe Borusan  Mannesmann  Boru Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Borusan Boru") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Mannesmann Boru Yatırım Holding A.Ş. ("BMBYH") İstanbul - Turkey
 BM Vobarno Tubi S.p.A. ("Vobarno") Italy
 Borusan Mühendislik İnşaat ve Sanayi Makinaları İmalat A.Ş. ("Mühendislik") Gemlik - Turkey
 Borusan İstikbal Ticaret T.A.Ş. ("İstikbal") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Ankara İnşaat Malzemeleri Pazarlama A.Ş. ("Borusan Ankara") (3) Ankara - Turkey
Distributorship Borusan Makina ve Güç Sistemleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("BMGS") İstanbul - Turkey
 Machinery Intertrade Limited ("UK") United Kingdom
 MIT Machine International Trade Limited ("MIT Machine") Malta
 MIT Machine Holding Limited ("MIT Machine Holding") Malta
 Machinery International Trade B.V. ("Machinery International") Netherlands
 Borusan Makina Kazakhstan LLP ("Kazakhstan") Kazakhstan
 BBM Machinery Limited ("BBM") United Kingdom
 Borusan Oto Servis ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Borusan Oto") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Otomotiv İthalat ve Dağıtım A.Ş. ("Borusan Otomotiv") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Oto Kıbrıs Limited ("Oto Kıbrıs") Northern Cyprus
 Borusan Otomotiv Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.Ş. İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Otomotiv Premium Kiralama ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("BOPAK") İstanbul - Turkey
Energy Maya Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. ("Maya Enerji") İstanbul - Turkey
 Yedigöl Hidroelektrik Üretim Ve Tic. A.Ş. ("Yedigöl") İstanbul - Turkey
 Turkuaz Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. ("Turkuaz") İstanbul - Turkey
 Hazal Hidroelektrik Üretim A.Ş. ("Hazal") İstanbul - Turkey
 Esentepe Enerji Yatırımları Üretim Ve Tic.A.Ş. ("Esentepe") İstanbul - Turkey
 Hidiv Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satış A.Ş. ("Hidiv") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Enerji Yatırımları Ve Üretim A.Ş. ("Borusan Enerji") İstanbul - Turkey
 Güney Rüzgarı Elektrik Üretim Ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Güney Rüzgarı") İstanbul - Turkey
 Kuzey Rüzgarı Enerji Üretim Ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Kuzey Rüzgarı") İstanbul - Turkey
 Dinç Enerji Madencilik Üretim Ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Dinç")(1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Vaniköy Enerji Yatırımları Ve Üretim Ticaret A.Ş. ("Vaniköy") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Baltalimanı Enerji Yatırımları Üretim ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Baltalimanı") İstanbul - Turkey
 Beykoz Elektrik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Beykoz") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Beylerbeyi Enerji Yatırımları Üretim ve Tic. A.Ş. ("Beylerbeyi") İstanbul - Turkey
 Burgaz Enerji Yatırımları Üretim ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Burgaz") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Balabanlı Rüzgar Enerjisinden Elektrik Üretim Ltd.Şti. (Balabanlı) İstanbul - Turkey
 Eskoda Enerji Üretim Pazarlama İthalat ve İhracat A.Ş. İstanbul - Turkey
 Gökçeada Enerji Yatırımları Üretim ve Tic. A.Ş. ("Gökçeada") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 İntepe Elektrik Üretim ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("İntepe") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Maray Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret Ltd. Şti. ("Maray") İstanbul - Turkey
 Başkent Gölbaşı Maden Kömür Elektrik Üretim ve Tic. Ltd. Şti ("Başkent") İstanbul - Turkey
 Bandırma Enerji ve Kimya Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş. ("Bandırma") İstanbul - Turkey
 Kasırga Enerji Yatırımları ve Üretim A.Ş. ("Kasırga") (1) İstanbul - Turkey
 Boylam Enerji Yatırımları Üretim ve Tic. A.Ş. ("Boylam") İstanbul - Turkey
 Fuatres Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. ("Fuatres") İstanbul - Turkey
 KMFRES Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. ("KMFRES") (2) İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Ezine Elektrik Üretim San. Tic. A.Ş. ("Ezine") İstanbul - Turkey
 Sincan Elektrik Üretim San. Tic. A.Ş. ("Sincan") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Trakya Elektrik Üretim San. Tic. A.Ş. ("Trakya") İstanbul - Turkey
Logistics Borusan Lojistik Dağıtım Depolama Taşımacılık ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Borusan Lojistik") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan International Algeria SPA Algeria
 Borusan International Gulf FZE                                                                                                                                      Dubai / United Arab Emirates
 Borusan International Netherlands Coop Netherlands
 Borusan Logistics International Kazakhstan Limited Liability Partnership  Kazakhstan
 Balnak Nakliyat ve Lojistik Hizmetleri A.Ş.  İstanbul - Turkey
 Turlog Lojistik Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.Ş. İstanbul - Turkey
 BLG Lojistik Hizmetler ve Ticaret A.Ş. İstanbul - Turkey
Other Borusan Elektronik Ticaret, İletişim ve Bilgi Hizmetleri A.Ş. ("Otomax") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Manheim Açık Arttırma ve Araç Pazarlama ve Tic. Ltd. Şti. ("Borusan Manheim") İstanbul - Turkey
 Supsan Motor Supapları Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. ("Supsan") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Teknolojik Yatırımlar Holding A.Ş. ("Borusan Teknoloji") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Birlik Danışmanlık ve Organizasyon Hizmetleri A.Ş. ("Birlik Danışmanlık") İstanbul - Turkey
 Borusan Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. ("Borusan Yatırım") İstanbul - Turkey
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements    
  
The following amendments to IFRSs have been applied in the current year and have affected the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements.
   
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

The amendments introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1, the ‘statement of comprehensive 
income’ is renamed the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed the ‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to IAS 
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to 
IAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to 
be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do not change the option to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been 
applied retrospectively and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation 
changes, the application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument 
items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure 
requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those required in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value 
hierarchy required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures are extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.  

The Group included required extended disclosures under the Notes “Property, Plant and Equipment” and “Investment Properties”. Other than the additional disclosures, the application 
of IFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit 
obligations and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the 
'corridor approach' permitted under the previous version of IAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs. The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be 
recognized immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position to reflect the full 
value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net-interest’ amount, 
which is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The amendments to IAS 19 require retrospective application. 
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements (continued)  

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In May 2011, a package of five Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) 
and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five Standards are described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements. SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities 
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of IFRS 10. Under IFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is control. In addition, IFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that 
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee 
to affect the amount of the investor's return. Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.       

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should be classified. SIC-13 Jointly 
Controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions by Ventures will be withdrawn upon the effective date of IFRS 11. Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations 
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under IAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled 
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity method of accounting, 
whereas jointly controlled entities under IAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or proportional consolidation. 

The Group management reviewed and assessed the classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 11. The management 
concluded that the Group’s investments in Borusan Enerji and Borusan Manheim, which was accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method, should be classified as a joint 
venture under IFRS 11 and accounted for using the equity method.

The change in accounting of the Group’s investments in Borusan Enerji and Borusan Manheim has been applied in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in IFRS 
11. Comparative amounts for 2012 have been restated to reflect the change in accounting for the Group’s investment in Borusan Enerji and Borusan Manheim. The initial investment 
as at 1 January 2012 for the purposes of applying the equity method is measured as the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities that the Group had previously 
proportionately consolidated (see the tables below for details). Also, the Group management performed in impairment assessment on the initial investment as at 1 January 2012 and 
concluded that no impairment loss is required.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the 
disclosure requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In June 2012, the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of these IFRSs for the first time.



2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the financial statements (continued)  

Impact on assets, liabilities, and equity as at 31 December 2012 of the application of the above new and revised standards and IFRS 3 correction
 As at    As at
 31 December 2012   31 December 2012
 as previously IFRS 11 Goodwill  as
 reported adjustments Adjustment restated

Cash and cash equivalents  405,344,797  (8,270,858) - 397,073,939
Trade receivables  478,343,740  (659,323)  -    477,684,417
Other receivables & assets  209,699,214  (16,405,069) -    193,294,145
Inventory  633,553,106  (120,829) -    633,432,277
Assets classified as held for sale  1,125,300  -    -    1,125,300
Investment in a joint venture  -    91,861,734  -    91,861,734
Property, plant & equipment  1,498,602,902  (113,493,786) -    1,385,109,116
Advances given for property, 
   plant and equipment  21,569,062  (5,012,400) -    16,556,662
Intangible assets  90,616,911  (68,900,419) 32,285,000  54,001,492
Available-for-sale financial assets  4,345,856  -    -    4,345,856
Goodwill  74,370,805  (1,022,898) (25,828,000) 47,519,907
Deferred tax assets  9,948,049  (1,650,620) -    8,297,429
    
Total Assets  3,427,519,742  (123,674,468) 6,457,000   3,310,302,274
    
Borrowings  1,545,679,483  (117,650,283) -    1,428,029,200
Trade payables  606,309,050  (1,050,181) -    605,258,869
Employee benefits  28,497,632  (70,256) -    28,427,376
Current tax liabilities  16,730,737  (426,888) -    16,303,849
Deferred tax liability  64,409,479  (2,258,015) 6,457,000  68,608,464
Other payables and expense accruals  184,523,710  (2,218,845) -    182,304,865
    
Total Liabilities 2,446,150,091 (123,674,468) 6,457,000 2,328,932,623

Total Equity  981,369,651  -     -    981,369,651
    
Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012  
on the application of the above new and revised Standards    
 As at    As at 
 31 December 2012   31 December 2012
 as previously IFRS 11 Goodwill  as
 reported  Adjustment restated

Net cash flow from operating activities  206,945,935  (38,744,186) -    168,201,749
Net cash flow from investing activities  (297,032,732) 43,356,233  -     (253,676,499)
Net cash flow from financing activities  148,412,973  4,973,309   153,386,282 
   -
Cash and cash equivalents at the  
beginning of the period 347,018,621 (17,856,214) -    329,162,407
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period 405,344,797 8,270,858  -    397,073,939

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) 
(continued)

2.1 New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)
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Impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 January 2012  of the application of the above new and revised standards  
 
  As at   As at
  1 January 2012  1 January 2012
  as previously IFRS 11 as
  reported adjustments restated

Cash and cash equivalents   347,018,621   (17,856,214) 329,162,407
Trade receivables   399,633,939  (901,565) 398,732,374
Other receivables & assets   189,672,908  (23,552,512) 166,120,396
Inventory   603,533,426   (78,822) 603,454,604
Assets classified as held for sale   1,627,993  -    1,627,993
Investment in a joint venture   -    65,434,596  65,434,596
Property, plant & equipment   1,377,993,900  (110,742,393) 1,267,251,507
Advances given for property, 
   plant and equipment   31,939,643  (675,496) 31,264,147 
Intangible assets   53,421,402  (35,681,764) 17,739,638
Available-for-sale financial assets   4,419,222  -    4,419,222
Goodwill   11,834,565  (1,022,898) 10,811,667
Deferred tax assets   7,767,748  (251,577) 7,516,171
Financial asset at fair value 
through profit or loss    1,464  (1,464) -   
    
 
Total Assets   3,028,864,831  (125,330,109) 2,903,534,722 
    
 
Borrowings   1,213,012,785  (120,550,444) 1,092,462,341 
Trade payables   599,512,649  (1,610,091) 597,902,558
Employee benefits   21,308,089  (78,142) 21,229,947
Current tax liabilities   16,638,035  -    16,638,035
Deferred tax liability   70,562,198  (678,469) 69,883,729
Other payables and expense accruals   134,894,203  (2,412,963) 132,481,240
    
 
Total Liabilities  2,055,927,959 (125,330,109) 1,930,597,850
    
 
Total Equity  972,936,872 -    972,936,872
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2.1 New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 2012)

The amendments to IAS 1 as part of the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle are effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification to present a statement of financial position as at the 
beginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial position). The amendments to IAS 1 clarify that an entity is required to present a third statement of financial position 
only when the retrospective application, restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the information in the third statement of financial position and that related notes are not 
required to accompany the third statement of financial position. 

2.2 New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements 

Amendments to IFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to disclose information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments 
under an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in May 2012

• Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; 

• Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation; and

• Amendments to IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

Amendments to IAS 16

The amendments to IAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition 
of property, plant and equipment in IAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The amendments to IAS 16 did not have a significant effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 32

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify that income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for 
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments to IAS 32 did not have a significant effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Impact on profit (loss) for the year of the application of IFRS 11
 1 January-
 31 December 2012

Decrease in revenue 12.255.010
Decrease in cost of sales (8.985.196)
Decrease in Selling, general and administrative expenses (7.961.124)
Increase in Other operating (expense)/income, net 73.057 
Decrease in finance income/expense, net (5.855.962)
Increase in Translation gain/(loss) 229.536
Decrease in income tax expenses  (180.505)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.2 New and Revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Amendments to IAS 34

The amendments to IAS 34 clarify that disclosure of the total assets and total liabilities for a particular reportable segment is only required if a measure of total assets or total liabilities 
(or both) is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and there has been a material change in those measures since the last annual financial statements. The amendments 
to IAS 34 did not have an effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

IFRIC 20 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Specific transitional provisions are provided to entities that apply IFRIC 20 for the first time. However, IFRIC 
20 must be applied to production stripping costs incurred on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented. The Group management anticipates that IFRIC 20 will have no effect 
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not engage in such activities. 

2.3 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective 

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9    Financial Instruments
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
Amendments to IFRS 10, 11, IAS 27 Investment Entities¹
Amendments to IAS 32  Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities¹
Amendments to IAS 36  Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets¹
Amendments to IAS 39  Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting¹
IFRIC 21    Levies¹
Annual Improvements to 
2010-2012 Cycle   IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16 and IAS 38,IAS 24²
Annual Improvements to 
2011-2013 Cycle   IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 13, IAS 40²

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was amended in October 2010 to include requirements 
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.
 
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

On November 2013, it is tentatively decided that the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 will be no earlier than annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.  

Amendments to IFRS 10, 11, IAS 27 Investment Entities

This amendment with the additional provisions of IFRS 10 provide 'investment entities' (as defined) an exemption from the consolidation of particular subsidiaries and instead require 
that an investment entity measure the investment in each eligible subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the 
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realization and settlement’.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs) (continued)

2.3 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

As a consequence of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements, there are amendments in the explanations about the measurement of the recoverable amount of an impaired asset. This 
amendment is limited to non-financial assets and paragraphs130 and 134 of IAS 36 has been changed. 

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

This amendment to IAS 39 makes it clear that there is no need to discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging derivative is novated, provided certain criteria are met.

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 identifies the obligating event for the recognition of a liability as the activity that triggers the payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislation.

Annual Improvements to 2010-2012 Cycle

IFRS 2: Amends the definitions of 'vesting condition' and 'market condition' and adds definitions for 'performance condition' and 'service condition'

IFRS 3: Require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability to be measured at fair value at each reporting date.

IFRS 8: Requires disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments, clarify reconciliations of segment assets only required 
if segment assets are reported regularly.

IFRS 13: Clarify that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and IAS 39 did not remove the ability to measure certain short-term receivables and payables on an undiscounted basis 
(amends basis for conclusions only).
 
IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarify that the gross amount of property, plant and equipment is adjusted in a manner consistent with a revaluation of the carrying amount.

IAS 24: Clarify how payments to entities providing management services are to be disclosed.

Annual Improvements to 2011-2013 Cycle

IFRS 1: Clarify which versions of IFRSs can be used on initial adoption (amends basis for conclusions only).

IFRS 3: Clarify that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 13: Clarify the scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52.
 
IAS 40: Clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied proper

The Group has not had an opportunity to consider the potential impact of the adoption of these standard.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Borusan Holding A.Ş. and its Subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

3.2 Basis of Preparation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for land, buildings and machinery and equipment carried at revalued amounts (Note 11); 
certain financial instruments and derivative financial instruments which are carried at fair values. 

3.3 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Borusan Holding A.Ş. and its Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 on the basis set out below:

Subsidiaries in which the Holding, directly or indirectly, has power to exercise control over their operations, have been consolidated. Control is evidenced when the Holding owns, directly 
or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity.

Control also exists when the Holding owns half or less of the voting power of an entity when there is:

a) Power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity under an agreement; or,

b) Power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of the directors or equivalent governing body; or,

c) Power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors or equivalent governing body.

Comparative Information and Restatement to Previous Year Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared comparatively with the previous period to identify the financial position and performance trends. In order to maintain 
consistency, with current period consolidated financial statements, comparative information is reclassified and significant changes are disclosed if necessary.

Changes in accounting policies arising from the first time adaptation of a new IAS/IFRS are applied retrospectively or prospectively in accordance with the respective IASs/IFRSs 
transition requirements, if any. Where there are no transition requirements for any changes or optional significant changes in accounting policies and identified accounting errors, those 
are applied retrospectively and prior period financial statements are restated accordingly. Except changes in IFRS 11 which become effective from 1 January 2013, accounting policies 
applied in current period are consistent with accounting policies and accounting estimates applied in the preparation of consolidated financial statements for the period ended as of 31 
December 2012.

As explained in Note 2.1, the Group reviewed and assessed the classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 11. 

As explained in Note 29, goodwill information is adjusted to increase the fair value of intangible assets at the acquisition date by USD 32,285,000, offset by a decrease to goodwill of 
USD 25,828,000 and an increase in deferred tax asset of USD 6,457,000.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Basis of Consolidation (continued)

The principles of consolidation followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

i) The statement of financial position and statements of comprehensive income of the Subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carrying value of the investment held 
by the Group is eliminated against the related equity accounts. Intercompany transactions and balances between the Group companies and unrealised gains or losses on transactions 
between the Group companies are eliminated. The investment cost and the dividends obtained from subsidiaries are eliminated from equity and income for the year, respectively.

ii) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date, being the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The 
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

iii) Non-controlling interests’ share in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries is separately classified in the consolidated equity and statements of comprehensive income as non-
controlling interests. Kocabıyık Family members having interests in the share capital of the subsidiaries are treated as non-controlling interests and excluded from the Group’s interests.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.  Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries, without a loss 
of control, are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative 
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized 
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between;

i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and,
ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the cumulative gain or loss has been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assets. The 
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when the control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Basis of Consolidation (continued)

The following is a list of the operating subsidiaries as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 detailing the Group's controlling interest by direct voting power and the Group’s ultimate effective 
shareholding in such Subsidiaries' equity at those dates:

 (1) These subsidiaries are consolidated on the basis set below:
  a) power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity under an agreement; or,
  b) power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of the directors or equivalent governing body; or,
  c) power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors or equivalent governing body.
(2) This subsidiary is in liquidation process.
(3) All energy investments and Borusan Manheim are a joint-ventures of the group.

Indirect Shareholding 
Through Subsidiaries

Direct Shareholding 
By Borusan Holding

 2013 (%) 2012 (%) 2013 (%) 2012 (%) 2013 (%) 2012 (%) 2013 (%) 2012 (%)

Steel        
Borçelik (1)  20.77       20.77       33.90       33.90       54.67       54.67       38.72       38.55     
Borusan Boru   -         -         73.48       73.48       73.48       73.48       53.16       53.10     
Kerim Çelik (1)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.91       99.99       99.98       38.72       38.53     
Borusan Ankara (2)  -         -         99.40       99.40       99.40       99.40       58.69       58.60     
BMBYH  64.64       64.64       12.36       12.36       77.00       77.00       72.35       72.22     
İstikbal  82.68       82.68       -         -         82.68       82.68       82.70       82.70     
Vobarno  -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       53.16       53.10     
Bortrade  70.00       70.00       -         -         70.00       70.00       70.00       70.00     
Distributorship        
BMGS   70.11       65.11       18.80       18.80       88.91       83.91       81.83       76.60     
Borusan Oto  (1)  28.60       28.60       20.00       20.00       48.60       48.60       41.07       40.90     
Borusan Otomotiv (1)  21.00       21.00       28.00       28.00       49.00       49.00       38.83       38.60     
Borusan Oto Kıbrıs (1)  -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       39.95       39.70     
Borusan Otomotiv Pazarlama (1)  21.00       21.00       28.00       28.00       49.00       49.00       38.83       38.60     
Borusan Otomotiv Premium Araç Kiralama (1)  21.00       21.00       29.00       29.00       50.00       50.00       40.90       40.90     
Energy(3)        
Maya Enerji   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Yedigöl   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.90       49.90     
Turkuaz   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Hazal   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Esentepe   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Hidiv   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Borusan Enerji   49.00       49.00       1.00       1.00       50.00       50.00       49.85       49.80     
Meltem   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Güney Rüzgarı   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.87       49.80     
Kuzey Rüzgarı   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.87       49.80     
Eskoda   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       49.86       49.80     
Dinç (2)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Tayfun   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Vaniköy (2)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Baltalimanı   0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.87       49.80     
Beykoz (2)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Beylerbeyi   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       50.20       50.10     
Burgaz (2)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Balabanlı   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       49.85       49.80     
Gökçeada (2)  0.25       0.25       99.75       -         100.00       100.00       50.10       50.10     
İntepe (2)  0.01       0.01       99.99       99.99       100.00       100.00       49.80       49.80     
Maray   0.05       0.05       99.95       99.95       100.00       100.00       49.92       49.90     
Başkent Gölbaşı  99.91       99.91       0.09       0.09       100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00     
Bandırma   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       49.86       50.10     
Doğadan   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       50.10       50.10     
Dönüşüm   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       50.10       50.10     
Kasırga (2)  -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       50.10       50.10     
Boylam   -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       50.20       50.20     
Fuatres   -         -         99.95       99.95       99.95       99.95       49.86       49.90     
Kmfrs   -         -         99.95       99.95       99.95       99.95       49.90       49.90     
Ezine  99.80       99.80       0.20       0.20       100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00     
Trakya  99.80       99.80       0.20       0.20       100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00     
Sincan  69.80       69.80       30.20       30.20       100.00       100.00       94.80       94.80     
Logistics        
Borusan Lojistik  57.59       57.59       30.58       30.58       88.17       88.17       79.19       79.00     
Balnak  57.59       57.59       30.58       100.00       88.17       88.17       79.19       79.00     
BLG Lojistik  -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       79.00       79.00     
Turlog  -         -         100.00       100.00       100.00       100.00       79.00       79.00     
Other        
Borusan Manheim (3)  40.50       40.50       9.50       9.50       50.00       50.00       46.42       46.33     
Otomax  -         -         99.90       99.90       99.90       99.90       80.56       80.35     
Supsan   1.96       1.96       50.02       50.02       51.97       51.97       41.27       41.20     
Borusan Teknoloji  83.09       83.09       16.73       16.73       99.83       99.82       93.81       93.65     
Birlik Danışmanlık  93.78       93.78       -         -         93.78       93.78       93.80       93.80     
Borusan Mühendislik  -         -         96.94       96.94       96.94       96.94       51.53       51.40     
Borusan Yatırım  36.01       34.81       32.01       32.00       68.02       66.81       62.40       61.15     

Total Controlling Interest
Effective Shareholding 

by Borusan Holding
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign Currency Translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in USD, which is also the Holding’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The USD is used to a significant extent, or has a significant impact on 
the operations of the Group and reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Group. Therefore, the Group companies mainly use USD as 
functional currency. All currencies other than the functional currency selected for measuring items in the financial statements are treated as foreign currencies.

Based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency of certain subsidiaries of the Group has been determined 
to be USD as defined by IAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates due to the following reasons:

• The purchase and sales prices of the Group companies and the main services and products are mainly quoted in USD,

• A significant part of the financing and related finance costs of the Group is denominated in USD.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to translation gain / (loss) in the consolidated income statement. 
Non-monetary items and equity balances (excluding profit or loss) that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the 
dates of the initial transactions. 

As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of Borusan Holding A.Ş. (USD) at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance 
sheet date and their income statements are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of other comprehensive income as currency translation reserve. On disposal of such 
subsidiaries, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that particular subsidiary is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Turkish countrywide producer price index (PPI) published by Turkish Statistical Institute and TL exchange rates for the purchases of USD announced by the Central Bank of the 
Republic of Turkey for the last three years were as follows:

3.5 Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which 
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity 
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Year

2011
2012
2013

Year End TL/USD 
Exchange Rates

1.8889
1.7826
2.1343

TL/USD Rate Annual Change Inflation Rates (PPI)

22.18
(5.63)
19.73

%

13.33
6.16
7.4
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

• deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 
Employee Benefits respectively;

• liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based 
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

• assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance 
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously 
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of 
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in 
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. 

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially 
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis 
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent 
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent 
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are 
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances 
that existed at the acquisition date. 

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent 
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within 
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. 

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the 
Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously 
been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items 
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect 
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. 

3.6 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination. 

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit 
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit or loss in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

3.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise of cash at banks and in hand, short-term deposits, reverse repurchase agreements and other liquid assets. 
Other liquid assets mainly comprise of checks and notes maturing before balance sheet date. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.8 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables which generally have approximately 29 day terms (2012 - 35 day terms) are carried at amortized cost less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Provision is 
made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are written off when identified. 
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Related Parties

Parties are considered related to the Group if;

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party

   (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Group (this includes parent, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);
  (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
 (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate of the Group;

(c) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(d) the party is member of the key management personnel of the Group as its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in 
(d) or (e);

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligation between related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

Disclosures regarding related party transactions and outstanding balances are given in Note 34. 

3.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (“NRV”) after provision for obsolete items. Cost is determined using the monthly weighted average method or specific 
identification method depending on nature of production or actual cost for trading goods. Cost of work in progress and finished goods inventories include materials, direct labor and an 
appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Unrealizable inventory has been fully written off. When the 
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realizable value because of changed 
economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed.  The reversal amount is limited to the amount of the original write-down. 

3.11 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) is initially stated at cost, excluding the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such 
costs which are initially recognized include the cost of replacing part of such property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. Following initial 
recognition at cost, land, buildings and machinery and equipment are carried at revalued amounts, which is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. However, the 
decrease in the carrying value of an asset is debited to the equity to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction while 
value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts 
are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit. Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that 
the impairment losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or has decreased. The reversal is recorded in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For items of property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount, valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is credited to the asset revaluation reserve included in the statement of comprehensive income.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and 
depreciation based on the assets original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income 
in the year the asset is derecognised.

The cost or revalued amount of depreciable assets is depreciated at rates based on the estimated useful lives of assets. The estimated useful lives and the methods of depreciation are 
as follows:

Years Method

Buildings 6 - 50 Straight-line
Machinery and equipment 5 - 40 Straight-line
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 Straight-line
Motor vehicles 3 - 8 Straight-line
Other tangible assets 5 - 10 Straight-line
Leasehold improvements over the lease period Straight-line
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, which mainly comprise computer software, energy licenses and license applications, are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets are recognized, if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise; and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets excluding development costs created within the business are 
not capitalized and expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which it is incurred. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible 
assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight line basis over the best estimate of their useful lives (3-15 years). Energy licenses are amortized between 10-49 years. The amortization 
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with 
the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible 
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite 
to finite is made on a prospective basis.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there are no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. 

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

3.13 Non-current Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amounts will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sales, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one 
year from the date of classification. 

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the reporting period, and of the comparable period of the previous year, income and expenses from discontinued operations 
are reported separately from income and expenses from continuing operations, down to the level of profit after taxes, even when the Group retains a non- controlling interests in the 
subsidiary after the sale. The resulting profit or loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Impairment of Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except 
for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income up 
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased 
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31 December) and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future 
periods. 

3.15 Investments and Other Financial Assets

Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the 
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit 
or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ (“FVTPL”), ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale (“AFS”) 
financial assets’ or ‘loans and receivables’. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are carried 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well 
as through the amortization process. 
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Investments and Other Financial Assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss.

The Group’s AFS investments are unquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market and stated at cost at the end of each reporting period since their value can’t be 
reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates, interest income calculated using the effective interest 
method and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain 
or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the 
end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

AFS equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled 
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. A financial 
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as 
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

3.16 Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing 
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised, as well as through the amortization process. 
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” 
arrangement; or

• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assets.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred 
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised 
in profit or loss.

3.18 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the 
asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised 
in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset 
does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversed date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative 
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 

Available-for-sale financial assets 

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any 
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to the income statement. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are 
not recognised in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

3.19 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 

Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income. 

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

3.20 Trade Payables

Trade payables which generally have an average of  88 days  (2012 – 133 days) term are carried at amortized cost by using effective interest method which is the fair value of consideration 
to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group. 

3.21 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.22 Research and Development Costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred and development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Taxation and Deferred Income Taxes

Income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred taxes. 

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Holding and its Subsidiaries’ liability for current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which is used in the 
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and 
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the 
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from 
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against 
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company and its Subsidiaries’ expect, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied 
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited directly to other comprehensive income, in which 
case the tax is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business combination, 
the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities over cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Employee Benefits 

(a) Defined Benefit Plan :

In accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey, the Group is required to make lump-sum termination indemnities to each employee whose employment is terminated due to 
retirement or for reasons other than resignation or misconduct and who has completed at least one year of service with the Group companies.

Such defined benefit plan is unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit is determined using the “Projected Unit Credit Method” based upon estimates of 
the Group’s obligations to personnel terminating their services and being eligible to receive such benefits, discounting using the current market yield at the balance sheet date on 
government bonds. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income as incurred.

(b) Defined Contribution Plan:

The Group pays contributions to the Social Security Institution of Turkey on a mandatory basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. 

3.25 Revenue Recognition

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Sales are recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, if any, or on the performance 
of services. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates, and other similar allowances. 

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

• The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

• The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Rendering of Services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion when it can be measured reliably. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, 
revenue is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Revenue Recognition (continued)

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.26 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of income/ (loss) in the period in which they are incurred.

3.27 Contingent Assets and Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.28 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income 
statement, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost. 

3.29 Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the date of the statement of financial position (adjusting events), are reflected in the financial 
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

3.30 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee 
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually 
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.30 Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the 
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. 
Under the equity method, an investment in associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize 
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or a joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds 
the Group's interest in that associate or a joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or a joint 
venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the associate or a joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of 
the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilitiesof the investee 
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities 
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognize any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. 
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by 
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount 
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for 
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at 
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at 
the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in 
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income 
in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed  of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, 
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or 
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method  is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment 
in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion 
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit 
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.31 Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the 
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent 
of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

• Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly.

• Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly.

• Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation.

• Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation.

• Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the 
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the 
extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and 
losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled entity are recognized in the Group's consolidated 
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the Group.

3.32 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrument such as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate swaps to manage its 
exposure to interest rate risk. 

The Group is exposed to foreign currency rate risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the USD. The currencies giving rise to this risk are Euro 
and Turkish Liras. The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk due to bank loans. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The 
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in 
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency 
risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.32 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

3.33 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Group Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the periods in which 
they become known. The significant management estimates are as follows:

Doubtful receivables: 

The Group recognizes a provision for receivables which are overdue and probable to create collection problems in the future. The provision is recognized by considering guarantees 
received for these receivables.

Impairment of inventory:

When the net realizable value of inventory is less than its cost, the inventory is written down to the net realizable value and the expense is included in the statement of income / (loss) in 
the period the write-down or loss occurred.  When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down below its cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence 
of an increase in the net realizable value due to change in the economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The reversal amount is limited to the amount of the 
original write-down. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

Tangible and intangible assets are depreciated and amortized over the useful lives determined by the Group Management (Note 3.11). The Group periodically reviews its useful live 
estimates to ensure that they reflect the actual use and expected remaining future benefits to be derived from the use of these property, plant and equipment.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment:

For items of property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount, the Group Management performs valuations frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of the revalued assets 
does not differ materially from its carrying amount. The Group Management believes that except Borusan Oto and Borusan Otomotiv’s land and buildings, the carrying amount of the 
revalued assets does not differ significantly from its fair values hence they have not performed a new revaluation exercise as at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets are recorded using substantially enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between book and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Currently, there are 
deferred tax assets resulting from tax loss carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences, all of which could reduce taxable income in the future. Based on available evidence, 
both positive and negative, it is determined whether it is probable that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will be realised. The main factors taken into consideration include future 
earnings potential; cumulative losses in recent years; history of loss carry-forwards and other tax assets expiring; the carry-forward period associated with the deferred tax assets; 
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences; tax-planning strategies that would, if necessary, be implemented, and the nature of the income that can be used to realise 
the deferred tax asset. If based on the weight of all available evidence, it is the Group’s belief that taxable profit will not be available sufficient to utilise some portion of these deferred 
tax assets, therefore some portion of or all of the deferred tax assets are not recognised. The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in certain entities because it is not probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to recognise deferred tax assets in those entities. If market conditions improve and future results of operations exceed the Group’s current 
expectations, the existing unrecognised deferred tax assets may be recognised, resulting in future tax benefits.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.33 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates (continued)

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts and option contracts are based on their listed market price, if available. If a listed market price is not available, then fair values are derived 
from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability or are derived by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current 
forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) or option pricing models.

Impairement of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with theaccounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units 
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates

Valuation of licenses, license applications and goodwill recognized on business combination:

Valuation of the Group’s licenses and license applications was based on discounted cash flows of each projects to determine the fair value of licenses and license applications. Valuation 
of the Group’s licenses and license applications was conducted to serve as a basis for allocation of the purchase price to the various classes of assets acquired in accordance with IFRS 
3 Business Combinations. For IFRS 3 purposes, fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties. 
In determining the fair value of the licenses and license applications, the Group adopted a "risk-weighted discounted cash flow" methodology whereby the discounted cash flows of each 
project, are adjusted by a risk factor. The risk factors are determined by the Group Management following the due diligence conducted for each project, and take into account various 
criteria, including the status of the project, licensing status as well as perceived regulatory, environmental and feasibility risks. 

4. CHANGES IN GROUP’S ORGANIZATION

The following transactions took place during 2013, which resulted in changes in Group’s organization: 

Throughout the year 2013, Borusan Holding purchased additional shares of Borusan Yatırım for USD 2,014,304 from Istanbul Stock Exchange increasing its direct shareholding to 
36.01% from 34.08%. The Group also purchased 5.2% of BMGS and disposed its intrest in two statutory entities within the BMGS and Borusan Lojistik subsidiaries in the current year. 
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The difference between 
the carrying amount and the consideration paid is recognized directly in equity as it is a change in ownership interest and does not result in a change in control.

5. DIVIDENDS

In 2013, a dividend of USD 3,368 (2012: USD 2,823) per thousand share (total USD 18,878,738) (2012: USD 15,825,144) was paid to shareholders.
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Effective interest rate of time deposits as of 31 December 2013 is between 2% - 10% (2012: 5% - 12%) per annum for TL deposits and between 1% - 4% (2012: 1% - 5%) per annum 
for the currencies other than TL deposits.

As of 31 December 2013 effective interest rate of repurchase agreement is 6.50% per annum for TL agreements and 2.90% for USD agreements (2012: 5%, TL).

Maturities of these time deposits range from 1 day to 31 days (2012: 1 day to 22 days).

As of 15-18 March, current value of total assets provided under custodian accounts for the management of portfolio management companies amounts to USD 3,428,624.

Currency breakdown of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Banks  
   -time deposits  282,629,287   279,802,662 
   -demand deposits  57,447,983   116,747,253 
   -repurchase agreements with banks  315,091   144,733 
Cash on hand  169,004   363,715 
Liquid funds  3,428,624   -   
Other liquid assets  34,886   15,576 

  344,024,875   397,073,939

   31 December 2013   31 December 2012

Currency Currency Amount  USD Equivalent  Currency Amount  USD Equivalent

USD    234,842,570 234,842,570 248,289,518 248,289,518 

EUR   55,901,989   76,913,363   81,256,429   107,198,455 

GBP   246,446   406,141   131,526   211,831 

SFR   499   560   500   545 

TENGE   157,771,133   1,022,496   1,115,830,438   7,422,540 

IRAN RIAL   -     -     14,429,643,396   1,167,258 

TL   60,389,632   28,294,819   58,330,772   32,722,300 

DZD   198,625,112   2,544,926   4,790,780   61,492 

    344,024,875    397,073,939
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As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of USD 302,952,139 (2012 : USD 404,283,851) were neither past due nor impaired. The average credit period on sales of goods and services 
provided is 29 days (2012: 35 days). Interest rates applied for amortized cost computation varies between 8.3% - 13% for TL. (2012: 5.8% - 17%), 0.10 % - 0.50% for EUR and 0.20 % 
for USD. (2012: 0.10% - 8% for EUR and 0.20% - 0.30% for USD) denominated receivables.

The Group has offset  USD 228,229,359 (31 December 2012: USD 226,482,806) from its trade receivables that are collected from factoring companies as a part of irrevocable factoring 
agreements as of 31 December 2013.

Collateral received in relation to trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is as follows:

As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables of USD 99,493,767 (2012: USD 72,701,007) were past due but not impaired. Trade receivables disclosed below include amounts that are past 
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not recognized an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the 
amounts are still considered recoverable.The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Letter of guarantee  73,319,360   79,522,476 
Mortgages  516,775   1,176,643 
Guarantee through direct debiting system  76,527,557   59,735,674 
Letter of credit related to export receivables  2,231,312   16,723,563 
Insured receivables  1,278,193   5,788,066 
Other  4,201,053   1,744,800 

  158,074,250   164,691,222

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Up to 15 days  10,462,416   17,601,171 
15 to 30 days  36,139,620   23,248,017 
30 to 90 days  32,970,547   17,751,807 
90 to 180 days  10,132,668   6,855,268 
Over 180 days  9,788,516   7,244,744 

  99,493,767   72,701,007

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES, net

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current trade receivables

Trade receivables 421,800,479   500,252,257 
Trade receivables from related parties (Note 34)  378,463   488,230 
Less : Allowance for doubtful receivables (-) (19,733,036)  (23,755,629)

 402,445,906   476,984,858
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As at 31 December 2013, there is no trade receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated (2012: None). 

The provision for trade receivables is provided based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sales of goods and services provided, determined by reference to past default 
experience. As at 31 December 2013, USD 19,733,036 (2012: USD 23,755,629) were impaired and provided for. The aging of these receivables is as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Up to 90 days  654,938   546,780 
90 to 180 days  557,398   566,018 
Over 180 days  18,520,700   22,642,831 

  19,733,036   23,755,629

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Letter of guarantee  1,394,665   3,090,324 
Mortgages  552,651   600,023 
Guarantee through direct debiting system  285,010   1,398,375 
Letter of credit related to export receivables  743,448   -   
Insured receivables  720,893   989,225 
Other  1,170,121   411,919 

  4,866,788   6,489,866

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES, net (continued)

Collaterals held for trade receivables that are past due but not impaired at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Movement of allowance of trade receivables is as follows: 

As of 31 December 2013, non-current trade receivables were neither past due nor impaired.

 1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

At the beginning of the year  23,755,629   19,993,811 
Allowance provided during the year  4,016,482   5,144,629 
Amounts written-off as uncollectable  (341,679)  (151,901)
Amounts recovered during the year  (4,453,617)  (2,918,851)
Currency translation reserve  (3,243,779)  1,687,941 

At the end of the year  19,733,036   23,755,629

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Non - current trade receivable  
Other trade receivables  3,183,336   699,559

  3,183,336   699,559
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7. TRADE RECEIVABLES, net (continued)

Currency breakdown of current and non-current trade receivables is as follows:

  31 December 2013   31 December 2012

Currency Currency Amount  USD Equivalent  Currency Amount  USD Equivalent

USD  187,077,962   187,077,962   215,084,017   215,084,017 
EUR  97,965,880   134,790,699   137,548,237   181,462,054 
GBP  246,807   406,736   654,985   1,054,896 
IRAN RIAL  -     -     26,653,213,720   2,156,060 
TENGE  4,046,228,188   26,223,125   3,706,115,105   24,653,197 
TL  119,580,323   56,027,888   92,699,849   52,002,608 
DZD  86,073,124   1,102,832   99,067,916   1,271,585 

   405,629,242    477,684,417

8. INVENTORIES, net

Movement of allowance for NRV is as follows: 

Provision released during the year represents reversal of NRV impairment, due to the fact that the impaired inventory is sold during the year. Net realizable value of the inventories exposed 
to allowance in is USD 276,314,606 in 2013 (2012: USD 273,935,196).

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Merchandise inventories (trade goods)  285,606,551   277,996,851 
Goods in transit  54,411,116   66,924,192 
Raw materials  132,629,762   131,303,303 
Finished goods  116,322,741   94,254,868 
Work in process (WIP)  23,769,949   25,734,744 
Spare parts and operating supplies  88,130,292   43,285,251 

Less : Allowance for NRV of trade goods  (11,973,504)  (6,066,932)

  688,896,907   633,432,277

 1 January -  1 January - 
 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

At the beginning of the year  6,066,932   7,511,629 
Charge for the year  8,585,017   1,253,968 
Provision released  (3,116,284)  (2,823,816)
Currency translation reserve  437,839   125,151 

At the end of the year  11,973,504   6,066,932
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9. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ASSETS

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current asset  
Other receivables from non-consolidated related companies  (Note 34)  13,460,000       33,950,000     
Value added tax (VAT) receivable  40,264,831       45,842,178     
Income accruals   14,895,892       16,957,618     
Advances given   12,135,102       13,617,275     
Prepaid expenses  9,509,261       9,850,437     
Prepaid income tax  7,909,400       21,202,026     
Fair value of derivative transactions  -         964,107     
Due from personnel (Note 34)  972,818       2,119,609     
Other  14,573,127       21,017,597     

  113,720,431   165,520,847

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Non-current assets  
Other receivables from non consolidated related parties (Note 34)  54,952,064   4,565,963     
Deposits and advances given  8,872,785   9,029,980     
Prepaid expenses  4,417,349   5,639,295     
Other  5,901,946   8,538,061     

  74,144,144       27,773,299
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10. GOODWILL

The movement of goodwill during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

The Group assesses goodwill for impairment annually. Recoverable amount is determined by calculating the value in use. Principal estimates such as discount rate, growth rate, sale 
prices and direct costs are taken into account in assessing the value in use. As of 31 December 2013, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and determined that 
goodwill associated with the Group’s operations was not impaired. 

  1 January-   1 January- 
Cost 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

 Opening balance  47,519,907  10,811,630 
 Additional amounts recognised from business combinations   
    occuring during the year  -    36,708,277 

 Balance end of year  47,519,907    47,519,907
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movement of property, plant and equipment, related accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

(*) As of 31 December 2013, USD 110,264 of transfer made from intangible assets to machinery and equipment and furniture and fixtures. USD 53,963 of transfer made from tangible 
assets to rights. USD 73,157,274 of transfer is made from construction in progress to assets classified as held for sale.

The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during the year is USD 887,548 (2012: USD 4,605,419).  The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 
was between Libor+3.14% and Libor+4%, which is the effective interest rate of the related borrowings.

 31 December Additions Disposals       Transfers (*)           Currency  Revaluation  31 December
 2012    translation reserve increase 2013

Cost       
Land and buildings  655,189,886   24,281,240   (6,179,055)  (46,741,758)  7,215,253   23,958,547   657,724,113 
Machinery and equipment  637,923,353   90,962,056   (51,891,102)  (12,951,488)  4,012,900   -     668,055,719 
Motor vehicles  194,010,564   72,799,687   (65,350,470)  6,887   3,399,417   -     204,866,085 
Furniture and fixtures  121,195,991   8,003,486   (1,142,945)  610,341   1,756,558   -     130,423,431 
Leasehold improvements  116,857,293   2,395,716   (758,146)  8,247,843   740,938   -     127,483,644 
Other tangible assets  832,821   493,844   -     -     5,002   -     1,331,667 
Construction in progress  90,207,130   128,576,101   (9,976,640)  (32,997,161)  2,431,477   2,626,593   180,867,500 

  1,816,217,038   327,512,130   (135,298,358)  (83,825,336)  19,561,545   26,585,140   1,970,752,159 

Less : Accumulated Depreciation       
Buildings  (52,636,370)  (12,774,703)  826,550   2,577,268   (758,125)  -     (62,765,380)
Machinery and equipment  (190,720,969)  (49,147,503)  9,526,419   8,003,885   (1,927,425)  -     (224,265,593)
Motor vehicles  (78,565,133)  (14,182,804)  15,830,660   131,239   (1,078,197)  -     (77,864,235)
Furniture and fixtures  (81,429,893)  (8,269,605)  717,292   (22,933)  (1,660,776)  -     (90,665,915)
Leasehold improvements  (27,500,525)  (6,284,420)  450,725   34,905   (428,663)  -     (33,727,978)
Other tangible assets  (255,032)  (2,308)  -     -     (4,676)  -     (262,016)

  (431,107,922)  (90,661,343)  27,351,646   10,724,364   (5,857,862)  -     (489,551,117)

Net book value  1,385,109,116   236,850,787   (107,946,712)  (73,100,972)  13,703,683   26,585,140   1,481,201,042 
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Movement of property, plant and equipment, related accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

(*) As of 31 December 2012, USD 180,383 of transfer made from intangible assets to machinery and equipment and USD 1,334 of transfer is made from construction in progress to other 
non-current assets.

 31 December Additions Disposals     Transfers (*)           Currency  Acquisition of 31 December
 2011    translation reserve Subsidiary 2012

Cost       
Land and buildings  594,533,765   55,519,839   (1,556,209)  3,553,049   3,134,531   4,911   655,189,886 
Machinery and equipment  533,835,213   125,253,861   (28,912,937)  301,071   1,477,011   5,969,134   637,923,353 
Motor vehicles  148,441,731   62,403,644   (29,711,665)  -     1,804,142   11,072,712   194,010,564 
Furniture and fixtures  99,926,293   14,925,500   (702,167)  11,476   859,243   6,175,646   121,195,991 
Leasehold improvements  109,512,755   5,147,568   (89,181)  311,073   303,752   1,671,326   116,857,293 
Other tangible assets  827,128   3,508   -     -     2,185   -     832,821 
Construction in progress  118,128,628   63,486,038   (87,841,366)  (3,883,627)  317,457   -     90,207,130 

  1,605,205,513   326,739,958   (148,813,525)  293,042   7,898,321   24,893,729   1,816,217,038 

Less : Accumulated Depreciation       
Buildings  (37,270,760)  (15,336,001)  213,170   -     (242,249)  (530)  (52,636,370)
Machinery and equipment  (148,646,021)  (44,060,663)  6,885,926   (113,993)  (588,524)  (4,197,694)  (190,720,969)
Motor vehicles  (61,711,672)  (22,806,601)  11,993,406   -     (340,080)  (5,700,186)  (78,565,133)
Furniture and fixtures  (69,413,247)  (7,880,814)  390,575   -     (674,459)  (3,851,948)  (81,429,893)
Leasehold improvements  (20,660,796)  (5,673,875)  89,181   -     (164,648)  (1,090,387)  (27,500,525)
Other tangible assets  (251,510)  (2,289)  -     -     (1,233)  -     (255,032)

  (337,954,006)  (95,760,243)  19,572,258   (113,993)  (2,011,193)  (14,840,745)  (431,107,922)

Net book value  1,267,251,507   230,979,715   (129,241,267)  179,049   5,887,128   10,052,984   1,385,109,116 
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On disposal of revalued assets, amounts in revaluation reserves relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings. Further, the depreciation difference realized from the revaluation 
surplus is transferred to retained earnings on annual basis as the asset is used by the Group.

Had the revalued assets been carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, the carrying amounts of land and buildings and machinery 
and equipment that would have been included in the consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Movements in revaluation surplus of land, buildings, machinery and equipment before allocation of non-controlling interest were as follows:

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Market Valuation (fair value assessment)

Land, buildings and machinery and equipment of the Group are revalued in January 2010 by independent professional appraiser, Standart Gayrimenkul Değerleme Uygulamaları A.Ş., of 
which the effective date is 31 December 2009. Lands and buildings of Borusan Oto and Borusan Otomotiv are revalued in January 2013 by independent professional appraiser, TSKB 
Gayrimenkul Değerleme Uygulamaları A.Ş. Valuations for those assets were made on the basis of the market value. Initially, the book values of such assets were adjusted to the revalued 
amounts and the resultant initial surplus (reserve) net of deferred taxes was credited to revaluation reserve in equity. Accumulated depreciation of the revalued buildings and machinery 
and equipment have been eliminated against the gross carrying amounts of related assets as at 31 December 2009 and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount. The Group 
Management believes that the carrying amount of the revalued assets does not differ significantly from its fair values hence they have not performed a new revaluation exercise as at 
the balance sheet date.

Details of the Group’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 and 2012are as follows:

  Fair value as at 31 December 2013

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

-Lands & Buildings  -    594,958,733 - 594,958,733

  Fair value as at 31 December 2012

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

-Lands & Buildings  -    602,553,516 - 602,553,516

 1 January - 1 January - 
 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

At the beginning of the year  315,455,367   324,137,918 
Disposal from revaluation reserve  (2,513,304)  -   
Current year addition revaluation adjustment  23,912,000   -   
Current year decrease revaluation adjsutment  (8,277,820)  -   
Transfer of depreciation difference (net of deferred tax) 
     between the revalued and original value of assets realized from 
     revaluation reserve into retained earnings pursuant to IAS 16  (7,748,812)  (8,682,551)

At the end of the year 320,827,431 315,455,367
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Revaluation reserve included in the consolidated financial statements comprises the following:

Mortgages and Pledges on Assets

As of 31 December 2013, mortgages on property, plant and equipment amounting to EUR 20,000,000 (equivalent of 27,517,219 USD) (2012: EUR 20,000,000 - equivalent of USD 
26,385,000). There exists no guarantees given for the liabilities already reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position denominated in USD as of 31 December 2013 (2012: 
None).

Finance (Capital) Leases

The Group recognised capital (finance) leases as assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments. 

The respective carrying value (net book values) of the leased assets, as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position is USD 10,367,097 (2012: USD 2,148,671).

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Revaluation reserve attributable to equity holders of the parent 144,399,338 143,429,138
Revaluation reserve attributable to non-controlling interest 176,428,093 172,026,229

 320,827,431 315,455,367
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net

Movement of intangible assets during the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Movement of intangible assets during the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

  Other Customer 
 Rights Intangibles List Total

Cost at 1 January 2013  53,488,006   23,729,584   32,285,000   109,502,590 
Additions  13,460,146   10,808,259   -     24,268,405 
Disposals  (87,526)  (52,907)  -     (140,433)
Transfers  (125,398)  -     -     (125,398)
Currency translation reserve  191,055   630,335   -     821,390 

Cost at 31 December 2013 66,926,283   35,115,271   32,285,000   134,326,554 

Accumulated amortization at 1 January 2013  (36,514,378)  (18,986,720)  -     (55,501,098)
Charge for the year  (3,796,556)  (3,760,178)  (3,228,500)  (10,785,234)
Disposals  41,851   2,628   -     44,479 
Transfers  69,097   -     -     69,097 
Currency translation reserve  (71,703)  (233,211)  -     (304,914)

Accumulated amortization at 31 December 2013 (40,271,689) (22,977,481) (3,228,500)  (66,477,670)

Net book value at 31 December 2013 26,654,594  12,137,790  29,056,500  67,848,884

  Other Customer 
 Rights Intangibles List Total

Cost at 1 January 2012  49,861,193   15,897,632   -         65,758,825 
Additions  4,009,286   5,843,208   -         9,852,494 
Disposals  (159,282)  (3,996)  -         (163,278)
Transfers  (294,376)  -     -         (294,376)
Currency translation reserve  71,185   233,420   -         304,605 
Acquisition of Subsidiary  -     1,759,320   32,285,000       34,044,320 

Cost at 31 December 2012  53,488,006   23,729,584   32,285,000       109,502,590 

Accumulated amortization at 1 January 2012  (33,129,617)  (14,889,570)  -         (48,019,187)
Charge for the year  (3,519,406)  (2,594,434)  -         (6,113,840)
Disposals  37,876   302   -         38,178 
Currency translation reserve  (17,224)  (152,878)  -         (170,102)
Transfer  113,993   -     -         113,993 
Acquisition of Subsidiary  -     (1,350,140)  -         (1,350,140)

Accumulated amortization at 31 December 2012   (36,514,378)  (18,986,720)  -         (55,501,098)

Net book value at 31 December 2012  16,973,628   4,742,864   32,285,000       54,001,492
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13. TRADE PAYABLES, net

The average maturity of the trade payables is 88 days and average interest rate applied for TL payables is 8 % and for USD payables is 3.08 % (2012: interest rate applied for TL is 6% 
and for USD is 4.57%, maturity 133 days).

(*) Borusan Boru has obtained a long term trade payable amounting USD 10,220,275 as vendor financing with an average rate of 3.80 %. BMGS has obtained USD 9,993,478 (EUR 
7,263,436) in short term and USD 49,771,888 (EUR 36,175,086) in long term vendor financing from CAT Financial Services Limited in 2013. The maturities of the financing agreements 
are in 2018. The interest is fixed at 5.48 %. Additionally, BMGS has obtained short-term vendor of financing from Societe Generale amounting USD 111,048,118 with an average interest 
rate of Euribor + 0.85 %. The maturity of the financing agreement is in 2014.

Currency breakdown of current and non - current trade payables is as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current trade payables  
Trade payables (*)  636,976,936   561,854,955 
Due to related parties (Note 34)  167,234   253,097 

  637,144,170   562,108,052

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Non current trade payables  
Non-current trade payables (*)   68,210,651    43,150,797 

   68,210,651    43,150,797

14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The interest rates for TL borrowings are 8.75% (2012: 6.15% - 8.40%). Variable interest rates for EUR borrowings vary between Cof+0.85%-Libor+2.70% (2012: Libor+0.95% - 
Libor+5.25%) Fixed interest rates for EUR borrowings vary between 0.98% - 6.75%. (2012: 1.32% - 7.25%). For USD denominated borrowings, variable interest rates vary between 
Libor+0.75% - Libor+5.50% (2012: Libor+0.75%- Libor+5.50%). For USD denominated borrowings, fixed interest rates vary between 0.71%-7.15% (2012: 2.53%-6.65%)

There are no secured short term borrowings as of 31 December 2013 and 2012.

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Unsecured borrowings 543,358,451   732,241,763 

Other financial liabilities 407,928 557,755

 543,766,379   732,799,518

 Currency  USD  Currency USD
Currency Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent

USD  385,248,987   385,248,987   378,914,433   378,914,433 
EUR  196,093,748   269,804,276   144,193,249   190,228,561 
GBP  127,767   210,559   242,031   389,807 
TENGE  103,402,139   670,137   425,377,226   2,829,623 
TL  104,902,132   49,150,603   57,234,461   32,107,293 
DZD  21,093,039   270,259   61,480,485   789,132 

   705,354,821    605,258,849

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
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14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)

15 . LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Currency breakdown of short-term borrowings is as follows:

EUR 6,000,000 of long-term borrowings is secured (2012: EUR 6,000,000). 

Effective interest rates p,a, (%)
                             USD                          EUR

  Fixed / Variable Min Max Min Max

Long - term Borrowings   858,148,096   Variable   Libor+2,10%   Libor+5,50%   Cof+0,85%   Libor+3,75% 

   Fixed  0,71% 5,72% 3,00% 7,15%

Finance lease obligations    -      

Total loans   858,148,096      

Less : Current portion of long-term borrowings
(including interest accruals for long-term borrowings)   (126,371,732)

Less : Current portion of lease obligations   -      

Total long-term borrowings, net of current portion    731,776,364

31 December 2013

Effective interest rates p,a, (%)
                                USD                          EUR
  Fixed / Variable Min Max Min Max

Long - term Borrowings   676,954,159   Variable   Libor+CDS+0,75%   Libor+5,50%   Libor+0,85%   Libor+0,85% 
   Fixed  3,00% 7,15% 4,15% 7,15%
Finance lease obligations    18,275,522      

Total loans   695,229,681      

Less : Current portion of long-term borrowings
(including interest accruals for long-term borrowings)   (108,203,213) 

Less : Current portion of lease obligations   (775,584)     

Total long-term borrowings, net of current portion    586,250,884 

31 December 2012

 Currency USD Currency USD
Currency Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent

USD  321,015,060   321,015,060   399,439,204   399,439,204 
EUR  88,636,086   121,953,888   233,729,056   308,349,678 
GBP  795,241   1,310,548   -     -   
TL  171,033,048   80,135,430   25,142,917   14,104,632 
TENGE  2,568,646,110   16,647,091   2,120,629,393   8,418,276 
DZD  211,068,693   2,704,362   193,816,401   2,487,728 

   543,766,379    732,799,518

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
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15. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)
The redemption schedules of long-term borrowings and long-term financial lease obligations as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

16. OTHER PAYABLES AND EXPENSE ACCRUALS

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current payables and expenses accruals  

Accrued expenses 49,398,760  46,288,379 
Advances received 26,791,995  72,506,775 
Taxes and dues payable 26,011,621  22,918,152 
Provision for litigation  5,240,556  3,446,619 
Accruals for personnel and board of directors (BOD) premiums  16,029,407  12,420,749 
Deferred income 13,585,761  7,608,166 
Due to personnel (Note 34) 2,465,870  3,439,854 
Due to related parties (Note 34) 678,766  64,730 
Derivative financial instruments 2,736,550  270,252 
Other  922,923  10,949,038 

 143,862,209 179,912,714

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Non - current payables and expense accruals  
Other long-term payables 1,273,544 1,024,187
Deferred income 949,088 941,096

  2,222,632   1,965,283

Some of the Group’s loans are subject to covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet certain key performance indicators, such as the net debt/EBITDA, EBITDA/financial 
expense and total liabilities/tangible net worth ratios.

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Between 1-2 years 313,178,206   280,243,454 
Between 2-3 years 281,347,863   149,045,756 
Between 3-4 years 43,816,381   80,963,800 
Between 4-5 years 47,280,067   52,699,803 
More than 5 years 46,153,847   23,298,071

 731,776,364 586,250,884

Currency breakdown of long-term and current portion of long-term borrowings are as follows:

 Currency USD Currency  USD
Currency Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent

USD 555,102,329 555,102,329  569,555,272       569,555,272     
EUR 128,237,564 176,441,338  91,942,410       121,296,056     
TENGE 1,416,292,389 9,178,823  658,197,806       4,378,353     
GBP 179,166 295,264  -         -       
DZD 249,991,289 117,130,342    -     - 

    858,148,096     695,229,681

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
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17. TAXES ON INCOME

a) Current Statutory Taxes

The Holding and the subsidiaries which are incorporated in Turkey are subject to taxation in accordance with the tax procedures and the legislation effective in Turkey. 

In Turkey, the corporation tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2013 is 20% (2012: 20%). Corporate tax returns are required to be filed until the twenty fifth of the fourth month 
following the balance sheet date and paid in one installment until the end of the fourth month. The tax legislation provides for a temporary tax of 20% to be calculated and paid based on 
earnings generated for each quarter. The amounts thus calculated and paid are offset against the final corporate tax liability for the year. 

Corporate tax losses can be carried forward for a maximum period of five years following the year in which the losses were incurred. The tax authorities can inspect tax returns and the 
related accounting records for a retrospective maximum period of five years. 

Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding taxes. With holding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating 
to investment incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, the investments without investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Income Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who 
are Turkish residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income withholding tax applied in between 24 April 2003 – 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 23 July 2006, this 
rate has been changed to 15% upon the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No: 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax. 

Current statutory income tax payable for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Provision for current taxes as per statements of income  
- Turkey tax charge  27,476,585   34,625,772 
- Kazakhstan tax charge  1,340,423   902,647 
- Malta tax charge  10,308,385   10,318,147 
- Effect of tax recovarable (Malta) (*)  (7,302,647)  (7,306,893)

Total statutory income tax charge for the year  31,822,746   38,539,673 
Prepaid taxes  (26,375,172)  (28,410,420)
Currency translation reserve  (1,089,309)  (705,409)
Tax receivable (Malta)(*)  7,302,647   7,306,893 

Income tax payable  11,660,912   16,730,737

(*) MIT Holding has a tax receivable amounting to USD 7,302,647 classified under current assets. (2012: USD 7,306,893)

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)



133

18. TAXES ON INCOME (continued)

b) Deferred Taxes 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on temporary differences arising between the financial statements as reported for IFRS purposes and the statutory tax financial statements. 
Such temporary differences usually result in the recognition of income and expenses in different reporting periods for IFRS and tax purposes. Deferred taxes reflected in the consolidated 
statement of financial positions are summarized as follows:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which 
the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized. 

The breakdown of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 using the current effective tax rates, are as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Deferred tax assets  1,059,146   8,297,429 
Deferred tax liabilities  (91,717,120)  (68,608,464)

Deferred tax asset (liability), net  (90,657,974)  (60,311,035)

(*) Deferred tax asset allowance is provided for specific subsidiaries since sufficient taxable profits will not be available in the foreseeable future. Allowance on deferred tax asset mainly 
arises due to tax losses amounting to USD 1,348,730 (2012: USD 2,107,642), provision for employee benefit obligation amounting to USD (185,741) (2012: USD 125,457), net difference 
between the tax base and the carrying value of property, plant and equipment amounting to USD 723,799 (2012: USD 108,981) and net difference between the tax base and the carrying 
value of inventories amounting to USD 187,117 (2012: None)

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Net difference between the tax base and the carrying value of inventories  (2,931,306)  2,539,247 
Provision for employee benefits obligation  5,009,646   5,685,475 
Tax losses carried forward  7,484,219   2,675,550 
Other provisions and accruals  2,048,344   5,208,066 
Net difference between the tax base and the carrying value of property, plant and equipment   
     mainly arising from remeasurement pursuant to IAS 21  (96,439,731)  (77,637,223)
Other temporary differences  (3,755,841)  3,559,930 

Total  (88,584,669)  (57,968,955)
Less: Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (*)  (2,073,305)  (2,342,080)

Deferred tax  liability  (90,657,974)  (60,311,035)
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17.TAXES ON INCOME (continued)

b) Deferred Taxes (continued)

Expiration schedule of carry forward tax losses is as follows:

Movements of deferred tax balances during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(*) USD 296,698 (2012: USD 223,656) charge to equity is related to cash flow hedge, USD 550,019 (2012: USD 420,456) charge to equity is related to actuarial losses from Employee 
Benefits Obligation and USD (2,673,140) (2012: None) charge to equity is related to revaluation of properties.

Reconciliation of taxes by applying the effective tax rates to profit before tax provision as reflected in the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2013 
and 2012 is as follows:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Expiring in 2013   -    10,538,210 
Expiring in 2014   39,128    46,848 
Expiring in 2015   210,773    252,358 
Expiring in 2016   2,171,595    2,540,335 
Expiring in 2017   4,816,041    - 
Expiring in 2018   30,183,558    - 

   37,421,095    13,377,750

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Net income from ordinary activities before income tax  166,173,600   121,686,348 
At statutory income tax rate at 20% (2012 – 20%)  (33,234,720)  (24,337,270)
Effect of: Disallowable expenses  (5,318,063)  (4,435,755)
Tax exempt income  1,825,737   4,125,834 
Non tax deductible translation gain arising from  remeasurement  (9,951,663)  (3,311,106)
Unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as deferred tax assets  (14,500,334)  (2,567,946)
Impairment provided for deferred tax asset 53,755 (451,046)

  (61,125,288)  (30,977,289)

 2013 2012

Beginning balance  (60,311,035)  (62,367,558)
Tax charge recognized in the statement of income  (29,302,542)  7,562,384 
Acquisition of subsidiary  -     (6,457,000)
Tax credited/(charged) to equity (*)  (1,826,423)  (644,112)
Currency translation reserve  782,026   1,595,251 

  (90,657,974)  (60,311,035)
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18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to each employee whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for military service, 
dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women), achieves the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men) if the employee has completed one year of 
service. The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum for each year of service as of 31 December 2013 of TL 3,254.44 (USD 1,524.83) (2012: TL: 3,033.98 
USD 1,446.27).

The maximum payment for retirement payment liability per year of employment is increased to TL 3,438.22 (USD 1,610.94) as of 1 January 2014.

International Accounting Standard No. 19 (“IAS 19”) “Employee Benefits” requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined 
benefit plans. As detailed in Note 18, such actuarial gains/losses are recognized within other comprehensive income starting from 31 December 2013.

IFRS requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the Group’s obligation under defined benefit plans. The provision has been calculated by estimating the present 
value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of the employees. Accordingly, as of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the following actuarial assumptions 
were used in the calculation of the liability:

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Interest rate 9,7% - 10,2% 8,98%
Expected rates of salary/limit increases 6,00% 5,00%
Turnover rate  2% 2%
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18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (continued)

Movements of the provision for employee benefits obligation during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

 2013 2012

Beginning of the year  28,427,376   21,229,947 
Actuarial (gain) / loss  1,335,338   2,102,279 
Interest expense   1,255,459   632,756 
Current service cost   3,303,937   5,241,836 
Payments  (6,014,123)  (3,082,719)
Acquisition of subsidiary  -     2,127,214 
Currency translation reserve  (3,259,756)  176,063 

End of the year  25,048,231   28,427,376

 2013 2012

Actuarial (gain)/ loss  3,437,617   2,102,279 
Deferred tax   (687,524)  (420,456)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss  (Net)  2,750,093   1,681,823 

Non controlling interest  (1,147,773)  (658,901)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss attributable to equity holders' of the parent  1,602,320   1,022,922

As detailed in Note 2, actuarial losses amounting to USD 1,351,081 (2012: USD 2,102,279) has been reflected to other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013. 

Equity reconciliation of actuarial gains and losses from employee benefits obligation is as follows: 

Of the total charge of provision for employee benefits obligations, USD 809,237 is charged to cost of sales, (2012: USD 1,056,390 is credited) and USD 4,289,103 (2012: USD 4,818,202) 
is charged to marketing and general administrative expenses.

Average number of personnel for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 6,321 (2012: 6,663). During the year ended 31 December 2013, the average number of personnel working 
abroad was 955 (2012: 991), of which 760 (2012: 814) are located in Middle East and Central Asia, 2 (2012: 2) in the United Kingdom, 90 (2012: 86) in Italy, 34 (2012: 50) in North Africa, 
27 (2012: 28) in Malta, 12 (2012: 11) in Cyprus, 30 (2012: None) in USA.
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1. Voting right.
2. Nomination of majority of board members.
3. Board membership nomination.

 Group Voting Rights TL  Share % TL  Share %

Yeni Nesil Yönetim ve Danışmanlık A,Ş, A 1,2,3  16,815,998  30,00%  16,815,998  30,00%
Ali Ahmet Kocabıyık B 1,3  10,650,122  19,00%  8,548,132  15,25%
Ayşe Nükhet Özmen B 1,3  10,509,988  18,75%  8,407,999  15,00%
Fatma Zeynep Hamedi B 1,3  10,509,988  18,75%  8,407,999  15,00%
Zehra Nurhan Kocabıyık B 1,3  4,904,656  8,75%  2,802,666  5,00%
İsmail Sefa Batıbayı B 1,3  2,634,506  4,70%  2,634,506  4,70%
Cemil Bülent Demircioğlu B 1,3  28,027  0,05%  28,027  0,05%
Borusan İstikbal Ticaret T,A,Ş, B 1,3  40  0,00%  40  0,00%
Asım Kocabıyık B 1,3  -    0,00%  8,407,958  15,00%

   56,053,325 100,00% 56,053,325 100,00%

USD equivalent   46,044,080  46,044,080

 2013 2012

19. SHARE CAPITAL

Holding’s historical statutory share capital (authorized) consists of 5,605,333,000 shares with a par value of TL 0.01 each as of 31 December 2013 and 2012. The share groups and 
privileges assigned to each share group are as follows:

At 1 January  5,605,333   56,053,325   5,605,333   56,053,325 

31 December  5,605,333   56,053,325   5,605,333   56,053,325

 Shares Amount Shares Amount
Common shares (thousand) (TL) (thousand) (TL)

 2013 2012
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20. RETAINED EARNINGS AND LEGAL RESERVES

Under Turkish Tax Law and Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”), consolidated reporting for tax and statutory purposes is not recognised. Each company within the Group is treated as an 
individual tax paying and statutory entity. The ability of an individual company to distribute dividends to its direct shareholders is dependent on its statutory profits.

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements, other than legal reserves, are available for distribution subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

The statutory legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with TCC. TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits 
at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the entity’s paid-in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash 
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they 
exceed 50% of paid-in share capital. Dividend distributions are made in TL in accordance with its Articles of Association, after deducting taxes and setting aside the legal reserves as 
discussed above. 

Revaluation fund from participations and special funds cannot be distributed to the shareholders, but can be added to the share capital.

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, general and legal reserves including inflation corrections (as per statutory financial statements of the Holding) are as follows (TL):

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Legal reserves  49,333,728   40,189,222 
Revaluation fund from participations  13,874,872   13,874,872 
Retained earnings  127,812,008   94,916,967 
Special funds   14,516,111   14,516,111 
Inflation adjustment on capital  47,501,810   47,501,810 
Gain on sale of investment to be added onto capital  16,237,255   16,237,255 

Retained earnings and legal reserves  269,275,784   227,236,237
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, loss from discontinuing operations includes loss of plastic operations of Borusan Mannesmann Boru in 2013.

 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets, net 63,364,794  554,794 
Other assets 573,199  570,506 

Assets classified as held for sale  63,937,993   1,125,300 

Borrowings -  -   

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale       -         -

 1 January -   1 January -  
 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Revenue - -
Cost of goods sold and services provided - -
Selling, general and administrative expenses - (502,693)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations - (502,693)

21. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

In December 2010, the Group Management initiated the negotiations to sell plastic operations of Borusan Mannesmann Boru to a third party and in December 2013, initiated the 
negotiations to sell İzmit plant. As at 31 December 2013 assets classified as held for sale and liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale is related with plastic operations 
and İzmit Plant of Borusan Mannesmann Boru.

Spiral welded pipe production facility with a capacity of 250,000 tons/ year which its investments started in Gemlik, has been put into use in 2012, completed its trial productions 
successfully and has already started its commercial operations. It is aimed that taking advantage with the facility that costs a total of 110 million investments, in large diameter pipes 
used in petroleum and natural gas pipelines’ markets in the way of waterfront strategic location, production elasticity, layout, production capacity and the technology is used. 

The production activities in spiral welded pipe facility which was established in Yenidoğan neighborhood near Seka state hospital İzmit / Kocaeli was stopped as a result of newly 
activated spiral welded production facility, Sekapark and the urban regeneration projects which are conducted by Kocaeli Metropolitan Municipality. In this direction, Gemlik facilities 
which have new production opportunities became active and large diameter pipes which are strategically important for the Group are started to be manufactured.

Fixed assets in Kocaeli facility; reclassed to assets held for sale group in the balance sheet and shown separately in the consolidated financial statements. Amount of USD 9,792,480 is 
accounted under revaluation reserve. 

The details of assets classified as held for sale, liabilities and expenses associated with assets classified as held for sale are as follows:
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22. NET SALES  

            1 January - 31 December 2013

 Domestic Sales Exports  Total

Steel Segment   
Steel pipes  356,314,442   318,716,819   675,031,261 
Cold rolled coils  278,564,086   111,225,392   389,789,478 
Galvanized sheets  381,639,397   95,116,780   476,756,177 
Steel servicing  248,141,553   801,269   248,942,822 

  1,264,659,478   525,860,260  1,790,519,738

Distributorship Segment   
Motor vehicles  880,811,177   -     880,811,177 
Auto spare parts and services  126,725,305   -     126,725,305 
Earth moving equipment (EME)  309,725,044   163,184,291   472,909,335 
Power systems (PS)  86,950,847   58,423,680   145,374,527 
EME and PS spare parts and services   111,034,022   137,353,789   248,387,811 

  1,515,246,395   358,961,760  1,874,208,155

Other Segment   
Logistic services  367,205,445   85,641,933   452,847,378 
Valves  6,512,643   9,788,104   16,300,747 
Miscellaneous  4,524,717   2,839,231   7,363,948 

  378,242,805   98,269,268   476,512,073 

  3,158,148,678   983,091,288  4,141,239,966

            1 January - 31 December 2012

 Domestic Sales Exports  Total

Steel Segment   
Steel pipes  348,138,001   696,304,621   1,044,442,622 
Cold rolled coils  323,695,026   12,576,950   336,271,976 
Galvanized sheets  406,081,776   32,043,246   438,125,022 
Steel servicing  268,419,133   198,752   268,617,885 

  1,346,333,936   741,123,569   2,087,457,505 

Distributorship Segment   
Motor vehicles  704,805,708   -     704,805,708 
Auto spare parts and services  102,310,036   -     102,310,036 
Earth moving equipment (EME)  289,857,065   186,415,530   476,272,595 
Power systems (PS)  68,849,670   46,774,698   115,624,368 
EME and PS spare parts and services   100,502,832   117,723,217   218,226,049 

  1,266,325,311   350,913,445   1,617,238,756 

Other Segment   
Logistic services  205,391,449   37,988,139   243,379,588 
Valves  8,332,857   12,509,312   20,842,169 
Miscellaneous  5,640,928   1,248,716   6,889,644 

  219,365,234   51,746,167  271,111,401

  2,832,024,481   1,143,783,181  3,975,807,662
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23. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES PROVIDED

24. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013  31 December 2012

Direct raw materials  1,302,396,462   1,527,721,379 
Labor  100,159,665   91,781,566 
Depreciation and amortization expenses  80,459,489   79,646,885 
Other production overheads including utilities, repair, maintenance   112,811,873   118,582,311 
Net changes in finished goods  (22,067,873)  18,897,709 
Net changes in WIP inventories  1,964,795   (2,527,929)
Cost of merchandise inventories sold  1,361,633,891   1,046,794,532 
Cost of services   457,930,539   308,397,843 
Cost of other sales  240,267,560   344,433,719 
Allowance / (Reversal of) for NRV  5,468,733   (1,569,848)

  3,641,025,134   3,532,158,167

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013  31 December 2012

Personnel expenses  112,993,045       106,118,234     
Depreciation and amortization expenses  20,935,850       20,712,728     
Consulting, audit and legal fees  21,379,826       18,760,546     
Advertising expenses  14,935,965       19,895,089     
Board of directors and personnel premium  19,609,533       14,089,632     
Travel expenses  8,905,253       8,526,508     
Rent expenses  8,641,184       6,490,012     
Insurance  6,261,198       5,943,258     
Car rentals and other car expense  6,784,019       5,676,057     
Donations sponsorship  6,957,136       5,893,413     
Outsourcing expenses  6,289,828       4,581,121     
Taxes  4,314,147       4,185,187     
Entertainment  3,329,163       3,739,304     
Representation and meeting  2,850,232       3,383,884     
Energy  3,590,050       3,168,017     
Training  2,814,939       2,998,836     
Communication  3,193,532       2,671,483     
Food expenses  2,196,595       2,515,065     
Provision for doubtful receivable, net of recoveries  (437,135)  2,225,778     
Repair and maintenance expenses  4,185,428       1,901,094     
Sales distribution expenses  5,445,241       1,192,088     
Stationary  1,078,092       990,039     
Provision for lawsuit expenses  984,595       669,550     
Other  19,055,688       22,928,419     

  286,293,404       269,255,342
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25. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

27. OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSE) / INCOME, net

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013  31 December 2012

Income from wind project  28,330,752   6,468,503 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  19,394,446   1,308,112 
Warranty income  575,066   987,777 
Scrap sales  983,271   884,214 
Rent income  1,317,049   565,569 
Commission income  2,596,177   426,218 
Commission expense  (4,164,716)  (828,176)
Other, net  3,261,774   3,407,939 

  45,770,271   13,220,156

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 Aralık 2013  31 Aralık 2012

Wages, salaries and other social expenses  178,554,215   163,833,608 
Cost of defined contribution plan (employer’s share of  social security premiums)  29,500,155   28,191,600 
Termination benefits  5,098,340   5,874,592 

  213,152,710   197,899,800 

  2013  2012

Personnel expenses  112,993,045   106,118,234 
Labor  100,159,665   91,781,566 

Total  213,152,710   197,899,800

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013  31 December 2012

Cost of production  75,779,514   77,197,367 
Selling, general and administrative expenses  15,236,261   16,685,380 

Total depreciation charge  91,015,775   93,882,747 

Currency translation reserve  (354,432)  1,877,496 
Total depreciation  90,661,343   95,760,243 

Cost of production  4,679,975   2,449,518 
Selling, general and administrative expenses  5,699,589   4,027,348 

Total amortization charge  10,379,564   6,476,866 

Currency translation reserve  405,670   (363,026)
Total amortization  10,785,234   6,113,840 

Total depreciation and amortization expenses  101,446,577   101,874,083
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28. FINANCIAL INCOME / (EXPENSE), net

29. ACQUISTION OF SUBSIDIARY

Borusan Lojistik purchased all of the shares of Turlog Lojistik, BLG Lojistik and Balnak (together “Balnak Logistic Group”) in 2 November 2012.

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Balnak Logistic Group are provisionally recognized based on the carrying value of the related assets since the Company is still assessing 
the fair value measurement of identifiable assets and liabilities and the allocation of cost to tangible and intangible assets under IFRS 3 as of the report date.

As of 31 December 2012, that the initial accounting for the business combination has not been completed because the valuation of intangible asset has not yet been received, and in 
2013 financial statements, the amounts and explanations of the adjustments to the provisional values recognized during the current reporting period. Therefore, goodwill is adjusted 
retrospectively to increase the fair value of intangible assets at the acquisition date by USD 32,285,000, offset by a decrease to goodwill of USD 25,828,000 and an increase in deferred 
tax asset of USD 6,457,000. Based on final assessment the difference between the net carrying value and cost amounts to USD 36,708,277 and it is recognized as positive goodwill in 
the financial statements.

(*) Other financial expense mainly comprises factoring expenses, letter of guarantee expenses, bank and credit card commissions, certain bank expenses paid for the loans obtained 
and other bank expenses.

Acquisition of 99,99% of Balnak Logistic Group at  31 December 2012 Acquiree's   
 carrying amount Fair value   
 before combination adjustments Fair Value
Net assets acquired    
Cash and cash equivalents 7,794,516 - 7,794,516
Trade Receivables 35,887,081 - 35,887,081
Other current asset 3,266,426 - 3,266,426
Tangible assets 9,932,370 - 9,932,370
Intangible Assets 409,180 32,285,000 32,694,180
Deferred tax assets 546,323 (6,457,000) (5,910,677)

Trade payables (17,023,370) - (17,023,370)
Short-term borrowings (9,431,430) - (9,431,430)
Other payables and expense accruals (6,789,113) - (6,789,113)
Long Term Debts (4,137,555) - (4,137,555)
Employee Termination Benefits (2,127,214) - (2,127,214)

 18,327,214 25,828,000 44,155,214

Group's share of net assets acquired   44,155,214
Total consideration   80,863,491

Goodwill (Note 10)   36,708,277
Total consideration satisfied in cash   74,968,491
Accrued payable due to acquisiton of Balnak   5,895,000
Total consideration   80,863,491

Cash consideration paid   74,968,491
Cash and cash equivalents acquired   7,794,516

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition   67,173,975

  1 January -  1 January -
 31 December 2013  31 December 2012

Financial income:  
Interest income  8,339,076   9,694,373 
Due date income, net  6,725,580   13,596,813 
Other financial income (*)  1,795,930   -   

Total financial income  16,860,586   23,291,186 

Financial expense:  
Interest expense  (76,118,363)  (77,669,522)
Other financial expense (*)  (9,837,190)  (10,751,605)

Total financial expense  (85,955,553)  (88,421,127)

Financial expense, net  (69,094,967)  (65,129,941)
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

2012:
Borusan Enerji has acquired Boylam Enerji, Kmfres and Fuatres in 2012. Boylam enerji is located in Saros, Çanakkale. Fuatres is located in Kemalpaşa, İzmir. The details of these 
acquisitions are as follows;

 Acquiree's 
 carrying amount Fair value 
 before combination adjustments Fair Value
Net assets acquired   
Cash and cash equivalents - - -
Other current asset 14,287 - 14,287
Tangible assets 120,615 - 120,615
Other non current asset 4,183 - 4,183
Licenses - 34,047,865 34,047,865
Other payables (9,092) - (9,092)

 129,993 34,047,865 34,177,858

Group's share of net assets acquired  34,177,858

Total consideration, satisfied by cash   34,177,858

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition   34,177,858

30. JOINT VENTURES

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint 
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

 Borusan Enerji  Borusan Manheim
Current assets 28,015,488 2,089,587
Non-current assets 210,090,739 2,281,421
Current liabilities (69,279,169) (3,214,002)
Non-current liabilities (73,556,662) (25,635)

Total 95,270,396 1,131,371
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equuivalents 25,404,322 1,985,738
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) (56,267,059) (1,712,619)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) (70,320,198) -

31 December 2013

 Borusan Enerji  Borusan Manheim
Current assets 9,658,125 1,594,249
Non-current assets 202,272,101 2,320,916
Current liabilities (26,567,674) (3,523,309)
Non-current liabilities (93,867,038) (25,636)

Total 91,495,514 366,220
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equuivalents 6,796,541 1,474,317
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) (23,681,618) (2,404,263)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions) (91,564,402) -

31 December 2012
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30. JOINT VENTURES (continued)

 1 January- 1 January-
 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

The movement of Joint Ventures is as follows:
   Beginning of the period - 1 January 91,861,734 65,434,559
Shares of profit/(loss) (20,125,604) (10,425,185)
Contribution to capital increase in Joint Ventures 24,665,637 36,852,360

End of the period - 31 December 96,401,767  91,861,734

 Borusan Enerji Borusan  Manheim
Revenue 15,264,576 3,442,435
Profit or loss from continuing operations (20,890,755) 765,151
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - -
Profit or loss for the year (20,890,755) 765,151
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (20,890,755) 765,151
Dividends received from the joint venture during the year - -
The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:
   Selling, general and administrative expenses (10,405,381) (2,172,001)
Other operating (expense)/income, net (1,198,582) 2,297
Financial income /(expense),net (6,803,722) 2,218

 Borusan Enerji Borusan  Manheim
Revenue 10,848,089 2,073,708
Profit or loss from continuing operations (10,198,912) (226,273)
Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations - -
Profit or loss for the year (10,198,912) (226,273)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (10,198,912) (226,273)
Dividends received from the joint venture during the year - -
The above profit (loss) for the year include the following:
   Selling, general and administrative expenses (6,535,763) (2,001,357)
Other operating (expense)/income, net (450,904) -
Financial income /(expense),net (5,150,905) (76,786)

1 January-31 December 2013

1 January-31 December 2012

 Borusan Enerji Borusan  Manheim
Net assets of the joint venture 190,540,792 2,448,855
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in the joint venture 50% 46%
Goodwill 1,022,898 -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint venture 95,270,396  1,131,371

 Borusan Enerji Borusan  Manheim 
Net assets of the joint venture 182,991,028 792,684
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in the joint venture 50% 46%
Goodwill 1,022,898 -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint venture 91,495,514  366,220

31 December 2013

31 December 2012
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Capital risk management 

Capital risk management of the Group aims to maximize the profitability through the optimization of the debt and equity balance, while maintaining the continuity of its business 
operations.
 
The capital structure of the Group includes of issued capital, reserves and equity items consisting of retained earnings disclosed in Notes 19 and 20, respectively.

The Group’s cost of capital and capital risks associated with each capital item are assessed by the Board of Directors and the Management of the Holding. Decisions on the dividend 
payments or capital increase are made based on those assessments and the Holding aims at balancing its capital structure by borrowing loans or settling its debt amounts.  

The Group’s overall strategy is determined in accordance with the financial risk management application framework issued on 22 October 2010. 

(b) Significant accounting policies

The details of the Group’s significant accounting policies in respect of financial instruments are disclosed in Note 3 “Summary of significant accounting policies” to the financial 
statements.

The carrying value of the financial instruments listed above approximates their fair values as of 31 December 2013.

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 344,024,875  -   -   - 344,024,875 6
Trade receivables 405,629,242  -   -  -  405,629,242  7
Other assets 113,720,431  -   -  -  113,720,431  9
Derivative and other financial assets and funds -   -   -  -  -    9
Available for sale investments -  4,393,238  -  -  4,393,238  
 863,374,548 4,393,238  -  -  867,767,786
Financial Liabilities      
Borrowings -   -  1,401,914,475  - 1,401,914,475  14, 15
Trade payables -   -  705,354,821  -  705,354,821  13
Other payables -   -  3,144,636  - 3,144,636  16
Derivative financial liabilities -   -   -  2,736,550  2,736,550  16
 -   -  2,110,413,932  -  2,113,150,482  

Note

31 December 2013

Balance Sheet

Loans and 
receivables 

(including 
cash and cash 

equivalents)

Available 
for sale 

investments

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortized 
cost

Hedging 
purpose 
financial 

instruments Total
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

(*) Includes hedging purpose derivative financial assets. 

The carrying value of the financial instruments listed above approximates their fair values as of 31 December 2012.

Note

Loans and 
receivables 

(including 
cash and cash 

equivalents)

Available 
for sale 

investments

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortized 
cost

Hedging 
purpose 
financial 

instruments Total
Financial Assets       
Cash and cash equivalents 397,073,939  -   -  -  397,073,939 6
Trade receivables 477,684,417  -   -  -  477,684,417 7
Other assets 165,520,847  -   -  -  165,520,847 9
Derivative and other financial assets and funds -   -   -  964,107      964,107 9 
Available for sale investments -  4,345,855  -  -  4,345,855 
 1,040,279,203 4,345,855  -  964,107 1,045,589,165 
Financial Liabilities       
Borrowings -   -  1,428,029,199 -  1,428,029,199 14, 15
Trade payables -   -  605,258,849 -  605,258,849 13
Other payables -   -  3,504,584 -  3,504,584 16
Derivative financial liabilities -   -   -        270,252      270,252 16
 -   -  2,036,792,632 -  2,037,062,884

31 December 2012

Balance Sheet
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Objectives of financial risk management 

The Group’s treasury is managed by finance departments of subsidiaries and the Holding’s finance department, which is responsible for the control and coordination and the Group’s 
finance functions are responsible for determining, assessing and managing the financial risks that the Group companies are exposed to using a proactive approach. This responsibility 
includes maintaining a systematical access to international and local markets as well as monitoring and managing the Group’s risk exposure using the in-house reports which analyze 
the level and extent of risks. Such risks consist of market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), cash flow risk, maturity risk and liquidity risk.

Risks that are attributable to the Group companies are managed by using the Value-at Risk (VaR) method and policies that are approved by the Board of Directors of each company. 
Such policies prescribe the written procedures on the currency risk, interest risk and the use of derivative or non-derivative financial instruments and investments in excess of liquidity. 
Compliance with the policies and risk limits are monitored by the Holding’s Finance Function on a daily basis. Idle liquidity is used to utilize alternative earnings via financial instruments 
within the limits specified by the BOD.

When appropriate, the Group uses forward agreements as derivative financial instruments to minimize and hedge its risks. The Group has no financial instruments (including derivative 
financial instruments) used for speculative purposes. 

In order to minimize risk exposure, Borusan Holding Finance Department reports to Group’s Management on a monthly basis, and reports to the Board of Directors of the Holding on a 
quarterly basis. 

(*) VaR represents the amount of possible loss in one day, with a confidence level of 99%, considering the market volatility in foreign currency exchange rates, capital markets and 
interest rates.

(e)  Market risk 

At the subsidiary level, the Group uses VaR analyses, which is the estimation of maximum loss within a given confidence level (99% probability) over a given period of time.

Risk management is assessed based on the functional currency of each company. The overall Group monitoring is performed in USD which is the functional currency of the Group. Risk 
reports are reviewed on a daily, weekly and monthly basis in order to perform a proactive and efficient management.

(f)  Foreign currency and interest risk management

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from a limited level of TL based trade receivables, tax and statutory liability payments caused by the operations of the Group 
companies and foreign currency positions held to benefit from higher yields within the limits determined by the BOD of Holding. The Group’s Treasury Management manages and 
controls such risk by offsetting the foreign currency assets and liabilities within the Group as well as using forward transactions and options. Fixed/variable costs of current loans are 
managed using derivative instruments within the VaR limits by monitoring the global market interest movements, for hedging purposes. 

According to VaR analysis performed by Group Management; the Group is primarily exposed to TL and EURO foreign currency risks. As a result of open position follow-up, as of 31 
December 2013, the Group has long position in TL for a USD equivalent amount of USD 4,490,133 and long position in EUR for a USD equivalent amount of USD 98,821,858 (31 
December 2012: the Group has short position in TL for a USD equivalent amount of USD 13,139,862  short position in EUR for a USD equivalent amount of USD 26,624,233).
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f) Foreign currency and Interest risk management (continued)

If volatility in capital markets, interest rates and foreign exchange rates is increased by 10% against as of 31 December 2013 keeping all other variables constant, value-at risk amounting 
to USD 4,228,535 (2012: USD 2,447,665) as of 31 December 2013 would have been higher by USD 2,519,916 (2012: USD 5,600,676).

(g) Credit risk management 

The Group’s credit risk primarily arises from its trade receivables. Such credit risk is managed by limiting the risk through the collaterals received and insuring the receivables. In 
managing credit risk, the Group uses instruments such as; Direct Debit System, non-recourse factoring, letters of guarantee, credit insurances and mortgages. The Group monitors 
its customer risks on a consistent basis and creditworthiness of the customers are systematically assessed based on the financial position, past experience and other factors. Trade 
receivables are reviewed depending on the Group policies and procedures and they are carried at net amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position subsequent to any 
provision for doubtful receivables (Note 7). As of 31 December 2013, trade receivables amounting to USD 1,999,086 (2012: USD 6,777,291) have been insured by the Group.

(h) Price risk 

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from the impact of the price changes on the steel raw materials and  trade inventories. The Group does not use commodity hedge instruments 
other than zinc swaps. The Group’s Treasury Management uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk of rising of only zinc prices. There are no global derivative instruments 
to be utilized against the adverse price changes on the sales margins. The Group optimizes inventory turnover rates by reviewing the sale-production-purchase balance on a consistent 
basis considering the price trend of the steel raw materials and trade goods for future periods and reflects the steel price to the selling prices.

(i) Liquidity risk management

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its expected and actual cash flows on a consistent basis considering its short, medium and long-time funding and liquidity 
requirements.

Liquidity risk tables 

Conservative liquidity risk management requires maintaining sufficient cash on hand, availability of sufficient loan transactions and fund sources and ability to close market positions.

Funding risk on current and future potential loan requirements is managed by maintaining the availability of sufficient number of creditors with high quality.

BORUSAN HOLDING A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(Currency - US Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise indicated)



31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The below table shows the contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities:

(j) Liquidity risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk tables (continued)

Borrowings 89,051,979 79,965,453 455,608,375 644,161,280 218,217,031 1,487,004,118
Trade payables 158,293,312 168,282,538 276,517,314 118,755,985 - 721,849,149
Other payables 2,465,870 678,766 - - - 3,144,636
Derivative Financial Liabilities 1,584,545 870,531 266,499 14,975 - 2,736,550

 251,395,706 249,797,288 732,392,188 762,932,240 218,217,031 2,214,734,453
      

31 December 2012
 Up to 1 Month 1 month-3 Months 3 Months-1 Year 1 Year-5 Years More than 5 Years Total

Borrowings 185,972,347 217,959,739 445,743,573 613,355,384 33,445,611 1,496,476,654
Trade payables 113,338,267 200,145,457 240,769,925 55,975,596 - 610,229,245
Other payables 850,163 986,880 - - - 1,837,043
Derivative Financial Liabilities 270,252 - - - - 270,252

 300,431,029 419,092,076 686,513,498 669,330,980 33,445,611 2,108,813,194

 Up to 1 Month 1 month-3 Months 3 Months-1 Year 1 Year-5 Years More than 5 Years Total
 31 December 2013
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined and grouped as follows:

• Level 1: the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market 
prices; 

• Level 2: the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on 
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions; and 

• Level 3: the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities where there is no observable market data.  The fair value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted 
prices. Where such prices are not available, estimate is made based on discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional 
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.  

Based on the fair value hierarchy, the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are categorized as follow:

Financial Assets - Fair Value Measurement

2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment funds 3,428,624 - - 3,428,624
Derivative transactions - (2,736,550) - (2,736,550)

 3,428,624 (2,736,550) - 692,074

2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment funds - - - -
Derivative transactions (net) - 693,855 - 693,855

 - 693,855 - 693,855
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32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantee Letters

As at 31 December 2013, the Group is contingently liable for letters of guarantee given mainly to the Government offices, government bids and customers amounting to USD 210,046,403 
(2012: USD 104,132,237).

Export Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, total amount of export commitments related to export incentives is USD 451,003,126 and is committed by Borçelik and Borusan Boru. (2012: USD 601,646,038) 
committed by Borçelik and Borusan Mannesman Boru).
 
Legal Proceedings

As of 31 December 2013, Borusan Otomotiv, Borusan Oto and Borusan Pazarlama are defendants in certain cases against automobile and service customers whose monetary claims 
aggregate approximately to USD 4,063,653 (2013: USD 4,170,999). 

Against such claims, reserve amounting to USD 3,892,310 (2012: USD 2,800,105) has been provided in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for Borusan Oto, Borusan 
Otomotiv and Borusan Otomotiv Pazarlama as of 31 December 2013.

Other commitment and contingencies

As of 31 December 2013 there are no other commitments and contingencies (2012: None).

                            Purchase Amount                                                                Maturities Between                                                                    Average Rate

Purchase Sell 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

 USD EUR 49,174,616 77,190,078 2 January 2014 - 26 February 2015 2 January - 21 December 2013 1.3466 1.2905    

 TL USD 42,712,979 84,135,934 2 January - 26 June 2014 30 January - 21 June 2013  2.0902 1.8107

 USD GBP 3,119,616 1,544,677 14 January - 30 April 2014 22 January 2013  1.6254 1.5682

 EUR  USD 36,388,500 1,455,002 22 January - 30 May 2014 6 May 2014  1.3677 0.7819

 GBP EUR 2,779,240 - 20 January - 20 June 2014 -  0.872 -

 JPY USD 75,409 - 6 January 2014 - 98.62 -

33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the summary of nominal amounts of the forward transactions entered into with various local branches of the foreign banks that were outstanding 
are as follows:

Forward Contracts
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33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest Rate Swaps

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such 
contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt. The fair 
value of interest rate swaps at the end of the reporting period is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at the end of the reporting period and the credit risk 
inherent in the contract, and is disclosed below. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period.

The following tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

                            Average contracted fixed interest rate                                       Notional principal value                                                              Fair value assets (liabilities) 

 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
 % %
Less than 1 year  -     -    -     -    -     -   
1 to 2 years 2,75  -    10,860,000   -    (267,502)  -   
2 to 5 years  -    2,75 -     16,740,000  -     596,076
5 years +  -     -    -     -    -     -   

   10,860,000   16,740,000  (267,502)  596,076
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34. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balances with related parties

                                            Receivables                                               Payables
                                                                                                             Current                                            Non Current                                                           Current
 Trade Non Trade Trade Non Trade Trade Non Trade

Borusan Mannesmann Espana S,A,  -        -        -        -        - -
Borusan Sigorta 2,902 - - - - -
Mitco Singapore PTE, LTD, - - - 6,629,016 - -
Sistem Organizasyon - 6,750,000 - 18,230,000 - -
Kirpi Turizm - - - - - -
B&B Havacılık - 6,710,000 - 1,350,000 - -
Borusan Kocabıyık Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İktisadi İşletmesi 350,815 - - - - -
Due from / due to personnel - 972,818 - - - 2,465,870
Other 24,746 - - 28,743,048 167,234 678,766

 378,463 14,432,818 - 54,952,064 167,234 3,144,636

31 December 2013

                                            Receivables                                              Payables
                                                                                                             Current                                            Non Current                                                           Current
 Trade Non Trade Trade Non Trade Trade Non Trade

Borusan Mannesmann Espana S,A, - - - 65,963 - -
Borusan Sigorta 16,142 - - - 9,691 -
Kirpi Turizm - 32,850,000 - - - -
B&B Havacılık 1,241 1,100,000 - 4,500,000 - -
Borusan Kocabıyık Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İktisadi İşletmesi 1,103 - - - - -
Due from / due to personnel - 2,119,609 - - - 3,439,854
Other 469,744 - - -  243,406 64,730

 488,230 36,069,609 - 4,565,963 253,097 3,504,584

31 December 2012
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34. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Transactions with related parties

1 January - 31 December 2013 Service obtained from Sales to Other expenses to Finance income from
 related parties  related parties related parties related parties

Borusan Kocabıyık Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İktisadi İşletmesi 1,010,774 - - -
Borusan Sigorta 275,358 250,001 644,070 -
Sales to Personnel - 3,225,516 - -
Other 846,551 - - 95,815

 2,132,683 3,475,517 644,070 95,815

1 January - 31 December 2012 Service obtained from Sales to Other expenses to Finance income from
 related parties  related parties related parties related parties

Borusan Kocabıyık Vakfı Kültür ve Sanat İktisadi İşletmesi 1,151,906 - 837,006 -
Borusan Sigorta 434,480 235,142 - -
Sales to Personnel - 113,872 - -
Other 1,168,994 125,067 - 24,660

 2,755,380 474,081 837,006 24,660
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34. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.

 2013  2012

Salaries and other short-term benefits  14,477,402 14,215,346

 14,477,402 14,215,346
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